
OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA
Notice is hereby given that the Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton,

Wisconsin will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location

given below.

Meeting of the:

Date /Time:
Location:

Members:

Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton

Wednesday, March 14, 2018 @ 5:30 pm.

Fire Dept. Training Room, 401 East Main St., Stoughton WI 53589

Scott Truehl (Chair), Roger Springman (Vice Chair), Peter Sveum, Regina Hirsch, John

Kramper, Ron Christianson and Finance Director Tammy LaBorde

1. Call to Order

2. Communications

3. Approval of RDA Meeting Minutes
 February 14, 2018

4. RDA Financial Report

5. Discussion and possible action regarding RDA members:
 Acceptance of resignation of John Kramper
 Appointment(s) to fill vacancy of Denise Durancyzk and John Kramper

6. Discussion and possible action regarding Revolving Loan Fund

7. Discussion and possible action regarding Marathon site

8. Discussion and possible action regarding TIF restructure
a. Review TID Plan for subtraction from TID #5
b. Review land use and zoning maps for new TID #8
c. Set public hearing date

9. Riverfront Redevelopment Area
a. Update regarding Powerhouse
b. Millfab/Carpet Warehouse demolition update
c. Follow up on Access to Highway Trailer Building
d. Update on Highway Trailer Building

i. Plan for demolition
ii. Idle Sites Grant application

10. Discussion regarding rescheduling April meeting date

11. Future agenda items

12. Adjournment

Next RDA meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, April 11, 2018 at 5:30 p.m.

NOTE: An expanded meeting may constitute a quorum of the Council.
If you are disabled and in need of assistance, please call 873-6677 prior to this meeting.





 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that the Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton, 
Wisconsin will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location 
given below. 


Meeting of the: 


Date /Time: 
Location: 
Members: 


Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton 
Wednesday, March 14, 2018 @ 5:30 pm. 
Fire Dept. Training Room, 401 East Main St., Stoughton WI 53589 
Scott Truehl (Chair), Roger Springman (Vice Chair), Peter Sveum, Regina Hirsch, John 
Kramper, Ron Christianson and Finance Director Tammy LaBorde 


1. Call to Order 


2. Communications 
 


3. Approval of RDA Meeting Minutes 
• February 14, 2018 


4. RDA Financial Report 


5. Discussion and possible action regarding RDA members: 
• Acceptance of resignation of John Kramper 
• Appointment(s) to fill vacancy of Denise Durancyzk and John Kramper 


6. Discussion and possible action regarding Revolving Loan Fund 


7. Discussion and possible action regarding Marathon site 


8. Discussion and possible action regarding TIF restructure 
a. Review TID Plan for subtraction from TID #5 
b. Review land use and zoning maps for new TID #8 
c. Set public hearing date 


9. Riverfront Redevelopment Area 
a. Update regarding Powerhouse 
b. Millfab/Carpet Warehouse demolition update 
c. Follow up on Access to Highway Trailer Building 
d. Update on Highway Trailer Building  


i. Plan for demolition  
ii. Idle Sites Grant application 


10. Discussion regarding rescheduling April meeting date 


11. Future agenda items 


12. Adjournment 


Next RDA meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, April 11, 2018 at 5:30 p.m.  


NOTE: An expanded meeting may constitute a quorum of the Council. 
If you are disabled and in need of assistance, please call 873-6677 prior to this meeting. 








REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, February 14, 2018 – 5:30 p.m.  
Hall of Fame Room 
 
Present:  


Scott Truehl, Roger Springman, Peter Sveum, Regina Hirsch, John Kramper, Ron 


Christianson and Finance Director Tammy LaBorde 


 


Absent and excused: 
None 


 
Others Present: 
Gary Becker, Denise Durancyzk, Parks and Recreation Director Dan Glynn, Dennis Pince, Bob 
McGeever, Emily Bahr, Bill Livick, Mayor Olson, Laura Trotter and Abby Abramovich 
 


Call to order:  
Truehl called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 


 


Communications: 
Springman inquired about the status of getting clearance to go into the highway trailer building.  


LaBorde stated she had not heard back from Risk Manager Gillingham, but she would ask 


again.   


 


Mayor Olson inquired about the status of the Milfab demolition process as she has heard from 


citizens that they believe the process has stalled.  Truehl stated they are about 1/5th of the way 


done and was on schedule.  Becker will forward pictures of the demolition progress to Derek 


Westby to post on the RDA website. 


 


Approval of the January 10, 2018 and January 31, 2018 RDA Meeting Minutes: 
Moved by Hirsch, second by Springman, to approve the minutes of the January 10, 2018 and 
January 31, 2018 RDA meetings as presented.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 


RDA Financial Report: 
LaBorde stated the report was in the packet.  Questions arose about the addresses for South 


Street and what properties were incurring expenses.  LaBorde will look into and report back for 


next meeting. 


 
Update regarding Mandt Park development: 
Parks and Recreation Director Glynn joined the meeting and gave an update regarding the 


Whitewater Park project.  Glynn stated he got the go ahead to start the conceptual design plan.  


Glynn said from a grant standpoint we are looking good and he has been meeting with 


stakeholders.  Testing of the sediment in the river, which will be covered by grants, will take 


place after the conceptual design has been completed.  Glynn is looking for support from the 


RDA to create a sub-committee for the project.   


Moved by Springman, second by Hirsch to have an RDA member serve on the steering 


committee for the Whitewater Park project.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 







Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes  


February 14, 2018 


 


Review, discussion and possible action regarding RDA Bylaws: 
Springman went thru the newest version of the bylaws.  He proposed new public involvement 


language.  Discussion took place on the new language.  Sveum and Christianson believed it did 


not belong in the bylaws and could be posted on the website.  Hirsch and Truehl could not 


decide whether the language was needed. 


 


Moved by Springman, second by Hirsch to add the Public Involvement section as proposed by 


Springman.  Motion failed 3-3. 


 


Moved by Sveum, second by Hirsch to direct staff to send the by-laws as drafted to the city 


attorney for review.  Motion passed unanimously. 


 


LaBorde will forward by-laws to Attorney Matt Dregne and will put Springman’s proposed new 


language on the RDA website. 


 
Discussion and possible action regarding Revolving Loan Fund: 
Discussion took place on possibly turning the revolving loan fund into grants, restructuring as 


forgivable loans or doing a 0% interest rate and when the property is refinanced or sells then the 


loan is repaid.  Kramper will get in contact with An at WWBIC to see what our options are and 


then discuss with Becker before bringing back to the committee for action. 


 


Discussion and possible action regarding TIF restructure: 
a. Discussion of TID boundary changes: 


Becker reviewed the various maps that he distributed.  The maps 
included the original boundaries of TIF #5, what parcels could be 
subtracted out of TIF #5 and included in the new TIF #8, the amended 
boundaries of the TIF including parcel id’s.  The first map also shows the 
parcels that are considered blighted (in red) which leaves the remaining 
TIF #5 51% blighted and the new TIF #8 60% blighted.     
 


b. Discussion of future land uses for redevelopment area: 
Becker stated there needs to be a foundation for making decisions for the new 


TIF.  He started with the charrette and built out the area from there to get an 


idea.  He is working off a conceptual plan, but needs something concrete to 


base calculations on.  Sveum stated the RDA needs to develop a conceptual 


plan to be able to give developers guidance to what the RDA wants.  Density 


and ownership are two items that need to be decided on so accurate 


calculations can be done for the new TIF.  The total area is 15 acres and would 


use ten of those acres leaving 1/3 for open space.  The open space would be 


scattered plus there could be a promenade and river path. 


 


c.  Additional information needed for TIF creation: 
Becker went thru his handout covering what issues still need to be addressed.  


One of the top items is density concerns and ownership.  This seems to be a hot 


issue and really needs to be addressed before the development can move 


forward.   


 


 


 







Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes 


February 14, 2018 


Riverfront Redevelopment Area: 
a. Discussion regarding Powerhouse: 


Discussion took place on whether the Powerhouse should be made part of the 


Riverfront Redevelopment Area project or to sell building outright.  Abby 


Abramovich joined the discussion and stated her and her husband are 


interested in purchasing the Powerhouse and turning it into a distillery or 


brewery.  Her design ideas are to turn the larger area into the distillery and the 


newer section of the building into a tasting room and eventually having a patio 


area outside.  She will be touring the building on the 15th and has already met 


with the Landmarks Commission.  Once the building is purchased she would 


need to be up and running within two years.  Members were supportive of the 


idea, but cautioned that the RDA needed to figure out first what they wanted to 


do with the area and how a master developer may have other uses for that 


property.  The members encouraged Abramovich to continue to do research and 


start her budgetary process and to stay in touch with the RDA as the RDA will 


also keep her up to date with any talks with developers that they may have. 


 
b. Millfab/Carpet Warehouse demolition update: 


Truehl restated that the demolition process is 1/5th of the way done and on 


schedule. 


c. Outline for Plan to move forward: 
Discussion took place on what the next steps should be and that included 


starting visionary workshops and meeting with stakeholders.  Suggestions for a 


joint meeting between Council and RDA and inviting the Monona Planning 


Director were among the ideas.  It was decided that at the March meeting the 


City of Monona Planner and Economic Development Director Sonja Reichertz 


would be invited to the meeting to give a presentation on their riverfront 


development and to invite the City Council as well.   


 


Becker will continue working on the technical side of creating the new TID and to 


help the RDA and Council set goals and provide them with information on three 


options to focus on.  Becker suggested utilizing Mindy Habecker once the new 


Mayor and Council members are in place to help facilitate the decision making 


process.   


 


d.  Next steps for RDA/Council: 
There are benefits of having a discussion with RDA and Council once again 


about the city’s debt and borrowing process was brought up.  The RDA thought 


it would be a good idea once the new Council and RDA members are in place 


after the April election. 


 


e. Budget Summary update: 
No discussion. 


 


f.  Duranczyk RDA action plan  ~ draft: 
No discussion. 


 


g. Duranczyk Redevelopment ~ Cost/Benefit Analysis: 
No discussion. 







Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes  


February 14, 2018 


 


 


h. Moline building initiative: 
No discussion. 


 


 
Future agenda items – Review and Discussion: 
TIF Process 
Monona presentation 
Funding 
Historic Structures 
 


Adjourn:  
Moved by Sveum, second by Hirsch, to adjourn at 7:41 p.m.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 


 


 


Respectfully submitted,  


Lisa Aide 
Deputy Treasurer 








REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY EXPENSES - 2018


01/31/2018 Fund 261 REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 


Date JNL Type Description Reference # Debits Credits Balance 


REVENUES
261-00000-48110 INTEREST BEG. BALANCE   0.00
01/31/2018 JE JE WISC JANUARY ACTIVITY STATEMENT INTEREST 39.09 (39.09)
02/28/2018 JE JE WISC FEBRUARY ACTIVITY STATEMENT INTEREST 38.24 (77.33)
12/31/2018  261-00000-48110 END BALANCE 0.00 77.33 (77.33)


 TOTAL REVENUES 77.33 (77.33)


EXPENDITURES
261-55100-50340 OPERATING EXPENSES BEG. BALANCE   0.00


01/17/2018 AP INV STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES
DECEMBER UTILITIES 2017-501 &  425 E.South St., 314 W. 
Main St 171.14 171.14


01/17/2018 AP INV STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES DECEMBER UTILITIES 2017-433 & 439 E. South St 411.07 582.21
Total for Jan 722.58


02/14/2018 AP INV STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES
JANUARY UTILITIES 2018-501 &  425 E.South St., 314 W. Main 
St 172.63 754.84


02/14/2018 AP INV STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES JANUARY UTILITIES 2018-433 & 439 E. South St 414.02 1,168.86
Total for Feb 586.65


  261-55100-50340 END BALANCE 1,168.86  1,168.86


261-55100-50340-20200000 OPERATING EXPENSES BEG. BALANCE   0.00


01/18/2018 AP INV NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION RENTALS INC TEMP PANELS (156) RENTAL 1/5/18-2/1/18 98.28 98.28
01/19/2018 AP INV NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION RENTALS INC TEMP FENCING CONTRACT 12 MO RENEWAL 513.24 611.52
01/31/2018 JE JE TO RECORD COPY USAGE - JANUARY COPIER CHARGES 3.55 615.07
01/31/2018 JE JE TO RECORD POSTAGE FOR JANUARY POSTAGE 38.54 653.61


Total for Jan 653.61


PAGE 1
3/8/2018







REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY EXPENSES - 2018


02/08/2018 AP INV GWB PROFESSIONAL SERVICES JANUARY-RDA VISIONING SPECIAL MEETING 3,173.22 3,826.83
02/08/2018 AP INV GWB PROFESSIONAL SERVICES JANUARY-RDA MEETING 548.22 4,375.05


02/22/2018 AP INV NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION RENTALS INC TEMP PANELS (384) RENTAL/35 SAND BAGS 2/16/18-2/16/19 1263.36 5,638.41
Total for Feb 4,984.80


12/31/2017  261-55100-50340-20200000 END BALANCE 5,638.41  5,638.41


261-55100-50850 ADMINSTRATION BEG. BALANCE   0.00


  261-55100-50850 END BALANCE 0.00 0.00 0.00


 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,807.27 0.00 6,807.27


NET OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES (6,729.94)   
 


PAGE 2
3/8/2018








Ts 
a) 
4... 
.0 
.Q0 


0:4 


>- 7- 7- 7- 7- 7- 7- 7- 7- 7- 


.F,  
C 
03 
U 
CO 


7- >- 7- 7- 7- 


IA 
CU 
u  
< 


N 
0 
r..i 


N CO 
N N 
0 6 


CD 01 01 CP al 
0 01 Ch 4-1 0 


N 	1..n 	01 
NE rn a 


N 
.-1 


.1- 	Li) 
C•.I 	LO 


cr, 
CO 


0 0 0 
N N s-I 


CS 
NJ 


LO 
0 


0 4 o 
4 o (-4 


66r4666LA6666666666666cicici66,i6666666666666 
o 
N 


nn o 
CO IN 


cn cn 
rn 	1-1 


01 
Cr. 


0 CS 
N 	.L-I 


Cl 4.0 0 LO 
N N N CV 


N Ct 0 
N fq N 


0 
NI 


0 
C31 > 


0 
cc 


CO LO 
01 	s-I 


Im
p


.  V
a


lu
e
  o 0 o o o o o o 0 0 in 0 itS 0 0 0-0-60 


LI1 CO 	VI 
	
M


O 
 N N 


Co 00' 	ri 	N.:" 03 CP 
LCI. N 	0 	0 0 C3 
Cr N 	N 	N N 1--1 
-03 1.3. 	VI. 	irfl. VI. tr> 


0
0
8


'TO
T


S
  


0
0


V
Z


S
T


$
 


0
0
1


18
6
$
  


0
$
 o o 


‘1- 	CO 
up lA  
Ch 
tn. 


0 
01 
LIS' 
Lrl 
NJ 
VI. 


0 0 0 
NV  .4-1 


(-4' 	L-i 	cri 
.-I N N 
N N tn. 
til. -0-1 


0 
03 


air 
N 
N 
tn. 


CS 
,-1 


rei 
Lil 
N 
-Loy 


0 000000000000000 
AO 0 0 


01 	•O-  
03 	cil 
ill 0 
ity N 


-L/1. 


0 
N 
to 
N 
N 
.i./1 


th 1.3. 


$ 4
9
, 5


0
0
 


$
9


9
, 9


0
0


 


$
4
3
6
,3


0
0


  


$
1
04


,7
0


0
  


 $
1


1
1


,
4


0
0
 


$
1
3
0
, 7


0
0


 


$
0


 


$
1
1
7
,0


0
0
   


$
1
3
9
, 0


0
0


 


0 0 0 
LD N 03 
u5 rsi .4 
N 	oF1 	Li) 
N 	NI -1.4 


-1,11 	VI 


Ce 
01 


r..:" 
N 
N 
1/1 


0 
N. 


.1 
0 
N 
in- 


000300 
0 0 0 


N cl-
U5' 0' 
N CO 
N N 
tr1 -VI- 


L
a


nd
 V


a
lu


e
  .000000000000 


0 0 40 0 0 0 O 0 
00 	r.4 	.,-1 	60 	CO 	r- 	.4 	(31 
ir■ cri r- 	d vl 	Lii." 1.--: ni 
.4 	r-i 	in- 	ri 	N. 	....4 	.e...4 
.{33. 	.03 	-1/1- 	.01 Ql. -V/ 


.Ln. 0 0 0 
N N IN  


c 	in cn 
Cl 	e.-I 	r-I 
-L.O. in. -Ln. 


3
2
,6


0
0
   


1 	
$


1
8


,8
0
0
 


0 
0 
N 
tn 
INI 
-1/1 


.0 0 0 
0 0 0 
03 	CO 	LES 


4 4 cn 
CO 	ni 	■.-I 
-V1 i.n. if} 


0 
CH 
CO 


4 
CO 
-VI. 


r 	
$


1
7


,7
0
0


1 


00000 
-V1 0 0 


N CO 


Lii 
Con. 	rel 


1/1 


0 
00 
4 
CO 
V1 


-in- in- .0 0 0 
t.10 	.-r 	LD 
rl.' 01 	1.6 
LO 	re] 	in 
V} -0.1 V1 


100o0o0o000 ,0000000 
0 0 0 0 0 0 
CO 	'qt.  1-1 	N 	CO 	1-1 


•c1 n rfi in 4 sn 
m ,r-I m ‘-i m CO 
VI. .1.4 tn. -411 tn, tn. 


c. c. 0 
0 co oo 
n, 4 4 
•Ci" 	M 	00 
in -1/1. 4...n. 


0 00 
4 rn 
V1 


0 al 
4 rn 
V1 


in. 


$
6
,4


0
0


  


$
2
4


,4
0
0


  


M
a
ili


n
g


  A
d
d
re


ss
  


P
o  


B
ox


  6
0


6
 	


S
to


u
g h


to
n
  W


I 5
3
5
8
9
 
 


6
0
9
 E


 S
ou


th
 S


t 	
S


to
ug


h
to


n
  W


I 5
3


5
8


9
  
 


1
1
6
  N


  S
w
ift


  S
t 	


Ed
g


e
rt


o
n


  W
I  


53
5


3
4


 
 


3
0


7
 E


 J
e f


fe
rs


o
n


  S
t 	


S
to


ug
h
to


n
  W


I 5
3
5
8
9
 
 


1
1
6
 N


 S
w
if
t S


t 	
E d


ge
rt


o
n


  W
I 5


3
5


3
4


 
 


1
1
6
  N


  S
w
ift


 S
t 	


Ed
g


er
to


n
  W


I 
5
3


53
4  
 


4
18


 S
  S


ev
en


th
 S


t 	
S


to
u


g h
to


n
  W


I 5
3
5
8
9
 
 


4
2


5
 5
 S
ev


en
th


 S
t 	


S
to


ug
h
to


n
  W


I 5
3
5
8
9
 
 


2
0
2
5
  M


e a
d


o
w


  D
r 	


S
to


ug
h
to


n
  W


I  
5


3
5


8
9


  
 


P
o  


B
ox


  6
0


6
 	


S
to


ug
h
to


n
  W


I 5
3
5
8
9
 
 


4
0


1
  S


  F
o


u
r t


h 
S


t 	
S


to
u
gh


to
n
  W


I  
5


3
5


8
9


  
 


4
2


5
1


 V
ila


s  
R


d 	
C


ot
ta


g
e


  G
ro


ve
  W


I 
5
3
5
2
7
 


5
0


9
 S


 S
ev


en
th


 S
t 	


S
to


ug
h
to


n
  W


I 5
3
5
8
9
 
 


P
o  


B
ox


  1
2
9
8
 	


W
in


s t
o
n
  O


R
 9
7


4
9


6
 
 


P
o  


B
ox


  1
2
9
8
 	


W
in


st
o
n
  O
R


 9
7
4
9
6
 	


I 
7
4


3
 H


e
m


p
h


ill
 A


ve
 	


Ed
g
e
rt


o
n


  W
I 5


3
5


3
4


 
 


3
1


7
 E


 S
ou


th
 S
t 	


S
to


ug
h


to
n
  W


I 5
3
5
8
9
 
 


2
5


7
5


 D
ic


ks
on


  R
d


 	
S


to
ug


h
to


n
  W


I 5
3
5
8
9
 
 


7
5
1


0
 R
ed


 F
ox


  T
rl


 	
M


a
d
is


o
n
  W


I 5
3
7
1 7


 
 


3
5
5
 E


 M
a


in
  S


t 	
S


to
ug


h
to


n
  W


I 5
3
5
8
9
 
 


3
8


1
 E
 M


a i
n


  S
t 	


S
to


ug
h
to


n
  W


I 5
3


5
8


9
  
 


4
17


 E
  J


ef
fe


rs
o
n
  S


t 	
S


to
u


gh
to


n
  W


I  
5


3
5


8
9


  
 


1
4
6
2
9
 B
ai


le
y  


S
t 	


T
ay


lo
r  
M


I 4
8


1
8


0
 
 


5
0


0
  E


  J
ef


fe
rs


o
n
  S


t 	
S


to
u


gh
to


n
  W


I  
5


3
5


8
9


 	
1 


3
8


1
 E
 M


a
in


  S
t 	


S
to


ug
h
to


n
  W


I 5
3
5
8
9
 
 


,3
8
1
 E
 M


a
in


  S
t 	


S
to


ug
h
to


n
  W


I 5
3


5
3


4
 
 


4
1
3
 N


o
ra


  S
t 	


S
to


u
gh


to
n
  W


I 5
3


5
8


9
  
 


4
2


1
 S
 Fi
ft
h


 S
t 	


S
to


ug
h
to


n
  W


I 5
3
5
8
9
 
 


P
o  


B
ox


  1
2
9
8
 	


W
in


s t
o
n
  O
R


 9
7
4
9
6
 
 


5
3
2
 D


un
ki


rk
 A


ve
 	


S
to


ug
h
to


n
  W


I 5
3


5
8


9
  
 


2
5


7
5


 D
ic


ks
o
n
  R


d 	
S


to
ug


h
to


n
  W


I 5
3


5
8


9
  
 


5
1
6
  D


u
nk


ir
k 


A
ve


 	
S


to
u


gh
to


n
  W


I 5
3


5
8


9
 
 


P
o  


B
ox


  1
2
9
8
 	


W
in


s t
o
n
  O


R
 9
7
4
9
6
 
 


5
4


0
  D


u
n
k
ir


k 
A


ve
 	


S
to


u
g h


to
n


  W
I 5


3
5


8
9


  
 


1
0


2
0


 G
i lr


u
st


  S
t 	


St
o


u
gh


to
n
  W


I 5
3
5
8
9
 
 


3
0
9
 S


 S
ix
th


 S
t 	


S
to


u
gh


to
n


  W
I 5


3
5
8
9
 
 


41
7E


 J
e f


fe
rs


o
n
  S


t 	
S


to
u


gh
to


n
  W


I 5
3
5
8
9
 
 


3
2
5
  E


  S
ou


th
 S


t 	
S


to
u


g h
to


n
  W
I
 


5
3
5
8
9
 
 


6
0


9
 E
ig


h
th


 S
t 	


S
to


u
gh


to
n


  W
I 5


3
5


8
9


 	
1 


60
1 


E
ig


h
th


 S
t 	


S
to


ug
h


to
n


  W
I  
5


3
5


8
9


 


2
1
0
1
 W


r i
g
h


t  S
t 	


M
a


d
is


o
n
  W


I  5
3


7
0


4
 	


1 
8
0


9 
E


  S
o
u
th


 S
t 	


S
to


u
g
h
to


n
  W


I 5
3


5
8


9
 


2
0
8
  5


  S
e
ve


nt
h
 S
t 	


S
to


u
g h


to
n
  W


I 5
3


5
8


7
 


P
a
rc


e l
 


A
d


d
re


ss
  


5
2


4
 E
ig


h
th


 S
t
 
 


6
0


9
 E


 S
ou


t h
 S


t  
 


4
1


8
  


R
id


g
e  


S
t  
 


3
0


7
  


E  
Je


ff
e


rs
o


n
  S


t  
 


4
1


8
  


R
id


ge
  
S


t
 
 


4
0
9
 R
id


g e
  S


t  
 


4
1


8
 S


 S
ev


e
nt


h 
St


  
 


4
2


5
 S


 S
ev


en
th


 S
t  
 


4
1


6
  


S  
A


ca
d
e
m


y  
S


t  
 


4
0


1
 S
 F


ou
rt


h 
S


t  
 


4
1


5
 5 


S
ou


th
  S


t  
 


5
0


9
  


S  
S


ev
en


th
 S
t  
 


4
3
3
 E


 S
ou


t h
 S


t  
 


4
3
3
 5 


S
ou


t h
 
S


t
 
 


4
1


8
 S


 S
ix
t h


 S
t  
 


3
1
7
 E


 S
ou


th
 S


t
 
 


4
2


5
 S


 F
ou


rt
h


 S
t  
 


3
0


8
  


E  
S


ou
th


 S
t  
 


3
5


5
 E


 M
a
in


  S
t  


3
2


1
 S


  F
o


u
r t
h


 S
t  


2
1
0
 S


 S
ix
th


 S
t  


4
0


1
 E


 S
o


ut
h


 S
t 


.F,  
VI 
C 
0 Ln i- 
01 
Lu Lu --, 
LU 


0 
0 
L11 3


8
1


  E
  M


a
in


  S
t 


3
2
4
 S


 F
ift


h 
S


t  
 


5
0


0
 E
 M


ai
n
  S


t  
 


4
2
1
  
S  


F
if
th


 S
t  
 


4
3


3
 E  


S
ou


th
 S
t  
 


5
3
2
 D


u
nk


ir
k
 A


ve
  


4
1
7
 S


 F
o
u
r t
h


 S
t  


5
1


6
 D


u
nk


ir
k 


A
ve


  


4
3
3
  E


 S
o


u
th


 S
t 


5
4


0
 D


u
n


k
ir


k 
A


ve
  


4
0
1


 
S


 S
e v


e
n
th


 S
t  


3
0


9
 S


 S
ix
th


 S
t  


4
1


7
 E


 Je
ff


e
rs


o
n


  S
t  


3
2


5
 E


 S
ou


th
 S


t  
 


6
0


9
 E
ig


h
th


 S
t  
 


6
0
1
 


E
ig


h
t h


 S
t
 
 


8
0


9
  
E


 S
ou


th
 S


t
 
 


2
0


8
 S


 S
e


ve
nt
h


 S
t  


O
w


n
er


  


S
to


ug
h
to


n
  T


ra
ile


rs
  I
n


c  


Je
nn


ife
r  


H
a


rr
is


  
 


S
to


ug
h
to


n
  P


ac
ka


gi
n
g
  C


or
p  
 


Ja
m


es
  D


 A
n


d
e


rs
o


n
  
 


(S
to


u
gh


to
n
  P


ac
ka


gi
n


g
  C


or
p  
 


S
to


ug
h
to


n
  P


ac
ka


gi
n
g
  C


or
p  
 


La
rr


y  
&


 A
m


y  
F


ra
n


kl
in


  
 


N
ic


ol
e


  E
 Eh


r  
 


'W
h


is
tl


e
  S


to
p  


D
ev


e
lo


p
m


e
nt


  L
LC


  
 


S
to


u
g
h
to


n
  T


ra
ile


rs
  I
n


c  


R
o
na


ld
 &


  D
e


b
ra


  C
h
ri


st
ia


n
so


n
  


K
ev


in
  &


 K
e
lly


  R
us


se
ll
 


T
im


ot
h


y  
&


 C
ar


o
l T


h
o
m


as
  
 


H
ol


le
y  


M
o
u


ld
in


g
  In


c  
 


...) 
C 
in 
c 


0 
0 


2 


al ,.. 
O 
t C


at
h


y
  L


 D
ic


ki
n


so
n
  


V
a


le
ri


e
  S


  B
lu


m
  


S
te


ve
  &


 J
u


lia
n


a
  


D
ic


ks
o


n
  


R
ic


h
a


rd
 &


  G
a
il
 


S
tir


r  
 


K
en


da
ll
 &
 P


at
r i


ci
a  


G
ul


se
t h


 
 


a
 


S
to


u
g
h
to


n
,  C


ity
  O


f 


D
a


n
n


y  
N


a
b


e
rg


  


D
a


ni
e
l
 


&
 A
n
g


e
la


  P
e
tr


e
  


C
h
ris


to
p


h
er
)
 P
 r


ou
gh


 	
1 


S
to


u
gh


to
n


,  C
ity


  O
f
 
 


S
to


u
gh


to
n


,  C
ity


  
O


f
 
 


›-
 


 


B
 C


 A
m


u
n d


so
n


  &
 5 


A
  A


m
u


n
d
so


n
  


Je
re


m
y
  &


  D
a


n
ic


a  
C


o s
sm


a
n
  


H
o


lle
y  


M
o
u


ld
in


g
  i
n
c
  


Ji
m


m
y  


&
 R


o
se


  Y
os


t  


S
te


ve
  &


 J
u


lia
n
a
  


D
ic


ks
o


n
  


T
im


o
th


y
  G


 F
ra


n
k 


H
o
lle


y
  M


o
u


ld
in


g
  I
n


c
  


R
ic


h
a


r d
 &


 N
a


n
ce


e
  L


 B
jo


rd
a
h
l 


D
a
vi


d
 A


 G
o
e
d
e
n
  


S
us


an
  M


 M
a


p
e


s  


D
a


n
n
y  


K
 A


a
b
e


rg
  


W
il
lia


m
  S


  C
u
te


r  


C 
0 Cn 
0 
c 
>. 
2 
ro 


CJ 
CO 
-ci 
c 


E 
ho 
in (J


a
so


n
  R


og
er


s  
&


 S
ar


a h
 C


h
e
vi


s  
 


W
I D


ot
  
 


Je
rr


y  
&


 M
a
rg


u
e
ri
te


  C
la


rk
 
 


M
ic


h
a


e
l
 


G
 Z
w


e
e
p
  


P
ar


ce
l
 N
u


m
b


er
  


0
5


1
1


0
8


1
6


1
0


1
6


 


0
5
1
1
0
8
1
95
8
0
1
  


0
5


1
1


0
5


4
6


8
2


0
9


  


0
5


1
1


0
8


1
2


9
3


3
8


 


0
5
1
1
0
5
4
6
7
9


0
6
  


0
5


1
1


0
5


4
7


0
0


0
9


  


0
5
1
1
0
8
1
10


8
8
4
 


0
5
1
1
0
8
1
1
1
5
4
3
  


0
5
1
1 0


5
4
9
7
7
0
4
 


0
5


1
1


0
8


1 0
3
9
4
2
 


0
5


1
1


0
8


1
2


9
5


4
3


  


0
5
1
1
0
8
1
4
3
8
9
4
  


0
5


1
1


0
8


1
6


5
0


1
2


  


0
5
1
1
0


8
1


6
5


6
2


9
  
 


0
5
1
1
0
8
1
6
7


6
7


2
  


0
5
1
1
0


8
1
3
9
6
8


5
  


0
5


1
1


0
8


1 4
4
3
3
9
 


0
5


1
1


0
8


1
2
9 7


5
8
 


in 
C.0 
CO 
Cl 
N 
1-4 
CO 
CD 
N 
N 
01 
0 


00 
W 
V1 
0 
Ni  
r-I 
CO 
Q 
N 
N 
01 
0 0


5
1
1
0
8
1
3
1
2
3
6
  


0
5


1 1
0
8 1


3
8


5
3


3 .
.
  


0
5
1
1
0


8
1
4
4
1
1
5
  0  


Lo 
LD 
N 
N 
e-f 
CO 
0 
N 
N 
In 
0 0


5
1


1
0


8
1


3
0


3
1


7
 


0
5
1
1
0
8


13
1
4
5
0
  
 


0
5


1
1
0
8
1
3
7
1
3
2
 


0
5
1
1
0
8
1
3
9
4
1
6
 


0
5
1
1
0
8


1
4


3
2


8
7


 


0
5
11


0
8


1
6


2
5


3
3


 


0
5
1
1
0
8


1
2
9
6
5
0
 


0
5
1
1
0
8


1
6


2
4


3
5


 


0
5
1
1
0
8
1
6
6
6
4
6
 


0
5
11


0
8
1
6
2
6 4


0
 


0
5


1
1
0
8
1
1
1
0
1
6
 I  


0
5


1
1


0
8


1
1


2
5


5
1


 


0
5
1
1
0
8
1
3
9
0
2
3
  


0
5
1
1
0
8
1
4
4
2
2
2
 


N 
cn 
NI 
03 
c.0 
N 
00 
40 
N 
1-..1 
in 
0 10


5
1
1
0
8
1
6
3
4
0
7
 1


  


N 
0 
L3 
N 
00 
e-I 
03 
0 
N 
N 
L.Ct 
0 0


5
1


1
0


8
1
9
5
4
0
9
  


0
5


1
1


0
8


1
1


2
3


3
7


 


Z 


Q. 
I w 	r.„ 	00 	cr, 	0 	ry 	,-.4 	NI  CO CO 	CO  CO 	0) 	m 0,  cr. 


vr 	L. 	w r., 


m M a,  a",  
co 	if, 
Cri 	cn 


8  
N 


8  1'8 2  
N N L-1 


a. 
N 


2  
N 


,I.  8 8 
r-i N N 


8  
N 


9 	1_,. 
N N 


tali 	7:,, 	3  
N N N 


4 	‘4,:, 	,i. 	.,1,0 	4 	li.24. 
N N N N N N 


r.., 	..1 	,3  
N N N 


.i-....,r 
N 


4  
N 


g:  
N 


ri.4 	ii43 
N N 







B
lig


h
te


d 
7- >- 7- >- 7- 7- 


... 


7-  7-  >- 7- Y 


C 
RI 
LS 
RI 


Y 7' Y Y. 7-  7-  


IA 
c 
S. u 


ort 
• 


N 
dr 
0 


Lr1 
Lr) 
1-4 


LD 
dr 
6 


0 
NI 
6 


Cri 
0 
6 


0 
LO 
6 


.-I 
0 
6 


0 
NI 
6 


0 
dr 
o 


rel 
N 
r..1 


d 
•rt 
6 


N 
0 
6 


0 
N 
6 


Le1 
ri 


6 


N. 
rl 


ci 


in 
,-I 
6 


LO 
NI 
ci 


CO 
0 
ci 


0 
NI 
ci 


...0 
0 


6 


CI 
NI 


ci 


0 
NI 


6 


0 
H 


d 


V1 
H 


6 


0 
N 


6 


H 
01 


6 


m 
H 


6 


CO 
H 


ci 


LD 
0 


6 


0 
NI 


6 


0 
CO 


6 


N 
0 


6 


co 
CO 


..-i 
>. 


O 
cK 


M 
CO 


4 


N 
0 


6 


0 
N 


6 


N 
*-1 


6 


N 
H 


6 


Lr) 
00 


,4 


01 
HI 


6 


0 
NI 


6 


nn 
0 


6 


.1
,0 7


)
  o 


0 
N 
Hr 
N 
in 


0 
0 
dr 
H.  
dr 
,-4 
in- 


o 
0 
0 
-1 


..-1 
H 
tr) 


o 
0 
dr 
CO 
N 
V) 


o 
th 


o 
tn. 


I 


$
85,


0001 


$1
.2


,71
-R


 


o 
V). 


0 
0 
00 


N 
in. 


o 
0 
in 
•::1" 
N 
H 
in 


0 
0 
in 
LIS to 
.-I 
VI- 


o 
0 
cr. 
•ZI 
tO 
HI 
Vi. 


1 


$
253,


6001 o 
-V) 


0 
0 
in 
6 
HI 
VI. 


o 
0 


Cu; 
1--1 
V). 


MONI00 


001 


o 
0 


R 
H 
to 


o 
0 


.4 
H 
ifl- 


NM 


o 
0 


CO.-  
vi 
-VI- 


tn. tn. 0 
si., 


R 
01 
4/1 


0 
N. 


4 
in 
t-1 
in 


0 
N 
N 
LO 
,-I 
in. 


0 
CO 


in 
H 
r4 
ill- 


000000000000 
0 
0 
.4 
...-4 
H 
in 


0 
N 
N 
01 
V? 


0 
HI 
os  
d-  


-IA- 


0 
N 
cr■ 
1-1 
H 
in 


0 0 
eel 	CO 
.-i Lri 
re1 	CO 
H 	.1.11 
in 


V) 0 
CO 


N 
0 
CO 
in 


in. 0 
LP 
CO 
TH 
.,-i 
41 


0 
01 
L.6 
Lo 
%-i 
V) 


0000000000 
0 
tO 
Ni 
‘--$ 
to 


0 
•ZY 
Lei 
Cr. 
rn 
in 


0 
CO 
4'  
01 
41 


0 
CO 
LD" 
tn 
41- 


tn. 
$
0


1 


0 
0 
ID 
6 
Ln 
in 


0 
0 ID  
.4 
LO 
Ul. 


0 
0 
N 
u6 
dr 
VI- 


0 
0 
CO 
4 
tri- $2


6,
10
01 


rel 


0 
0 
CO 
4 
41. 


0 
0 
CO 
046 
.-I 
V} $3


4,
80
01 0 


00 
4"  
rn 
in 


0 0 


,-i 
m"' 
Lt1 
V) 


OV)00000 
0 


N 


N." 
N 
Lr) 


0 


LP 


rn-  
,-i 
V) 


0 0 


N H 


r-7 re 
CO 	c-1 
V) V) $7


4,


0001 0 
0 
N 


ni 
N 
-v) 


0 
0 
01 
fri 
dr 
1d  


0 
0 
cn 
ril-  
,L-I 
1-0- 


$34,


8001 0 
0 
Lr1 
LD" 
,-I 
-U1- 


0 
to 


0 
to 


0 
0 
dr 
r-' 
e-I 
in. 


0 
0 
dr 
.1-  
NI 
If)- 


0 
0 
CO 
4' 
rel 
V) 


CI 
0 
0 
oo'  
Ln 
V) 


0 
0 
N 
n 
N 
ii) 


0 
0 
LC) 
d; 
N 
v) 


0 
0 
Cr, 
.1-' 
VI 


0 
0 
CO.  
.4-  
n1 
4) 


0 0 
0 0 
dr 	Ui 
NI O 
dr 	r-I 
V) V) 


0 
0 


- 
n.,1 
dr 
te). 


0 
-Ul- 


0 
0 
LC. 


0 
0 
dr 
,-I 
rn 
-V) 


0 
0 
dt 
Ln 
re) 
V) 


0 
0 
to 
1--,  
tr) 


0 
0 
d 
C:n 
,L-I 
.-i 
-v., 


0 
0 
CO , 
fn 
-V) 


0 
0 
4 
-u-v 


6
3
8
  D


un
ki


r k
 A


ve
  
	


S
to


u
g


h
to


n
  W


I 5
3


5
8


9
 
 


P
o  


B
ox


  6
0
6
 	


S
to


u
g


h
to


n  
W


I 
5
3


5
8


9
 
 


1
3


2
4


  V
er


n
o
n
 	


S
to


u
gh


to
n
  W


I 
5


3
5
8
9
 
 


4
0
9
 E


 Je
ff


er
so


n
  S


t 	
S


to
ug


h
to


n
  W


I 5
3


5
8


9
 
 


2
5
7
5
  D


ic
ks


on
  R


d 	
S


to
u
gh


to
n
  W


I  
5


3
5


8
9


  


P
o  


B
o


x  
1


2
9


8
 	


W
in


s t
o


n
  O


R
 9
7


4
9


6
 


3
8
1
  E


  M
a


in
  S


t 	
S


to
u
g h


to
n
  W


I  
5


3
5


8
9


 
 


4
0
5
 S


  S
ix


th
 S


t 	
S


to
u
g


h
to


n
  W


I 5
3


5
8


9
 _


  
3


8
1


E
  M


a
in


  S
t 	


S
to


u
gh


to
n
  W


I 5
3


5
8


9
  


'P
o


  B
ox


  6
0
6
 	


S
to


u
gh


to
n
  W


I 5
3
5
8
9
 
 


5
16


 E
 Je


ff
er


so
n
  S


t 	
S


to
u
g


h
to


n  
W


I 
5
3
5
8
9


 


2
1


6
0


 C
o


lla
d
ay


  P
o


in
t  


D
r 	


S
to


u
g


h
to


n
  W


I 5
3
5
8
9
 
 


5
0
8


E
 M


a
in


  S
t 	


S
to


u
g


h
to


n
  W


I 
5
3


5
8


9
 
 


5
0
0
  D


un
ki


r k
 A


ve
  
	


_  
S


to
u
g


h
to


n
  W


I 
5
3


5
8


9
 
 


6
1


7
 E


 S
ou


t h
 S


t 	
S


to
u
g


h
to


n
  W


I  
5
3
5
8
9
  


1
1


2
  H


a
rv


es
t
 C


ir
 	


O
re


go
n  


W
I 5


3
5


7
5


  


1
5


0
8


  M
o


li
ne


 	
S


to
u


g
h


to
n


  W
I 5


3
5
8
9
 


4
2


1 
S


  S
ix


th
 S


t  
	 S


to
u


g
h


to
n  


W
I 5


3
5


8
9


 
 


1
5
0
8
 M


ol
in


e  
S


t 	
S


to
u
gh


to
n
  W


I  
5
3
5
8
9
 


2
7
0
 C


ou
nt


y
  H


w
y  


N
 	


Ed
ge


rt
o


n  
W


I  
5
3
5
3
4
  


1
7
1
6
 U


s  
H


ig
h


w
ay


  5
1
 	


S
to


u
g


h
to


n
  W


I 
5


3
5


8
9


  
 


3
8


1 
E


  M
a


in
  S


t 	
S


to
u


g
h


to
n


  W
I  
5


3
5
8
9
  


3
8


1
 E
 M


a
in


  S
t 	


S
to


u
g


h
to


n
  W


I
 5


3
5


8
9


  


62
1 


E
  S


ou
th


 S
t 	


S
to


u
g
h


to
n  


W
I  


5
3


5
8


9
  


50
0 


D
un


ki
rk


 A
ve


 	
S


to
u


g
h


to
n


  W
I 


5
3
5
8
9
 


5
0
8
  E


 Je
ff


er
so


n
  S


t 	
S


to
u


g
h


to
n


  W
I  


5
3


5
8
9
  
 


5
1
7
1
 K


it
ty


cr
es


t  
D


r 	
Fi


tc
h


b
u


rg
  W


I 5
3
7
1
1
 
 


4
1


8
  S


  F
if


th
 S


t 	
S


to
u
gh


to
n


  W
I 


 5
3
5
8
9
 


4
7
9
 G


ar
fi


e
ld


 A
ve


 	
E


va
ns


vi
lle


  W
I  


5
3


5
3


6
  
 


5
2


9
 E


 M
a


in
  S


t 	
St


o
ug


h
to


n
  W


I 5
3


5
8


9
 
 


5
3
0
4
 B


re
m


er
  R


d 	
M


cf
a


r l
an


d
 W


I 5
3
5
5
8
 


5
2
6
 E


 S
ou


th
 S


t 	
S


to
u
gh


to
n  


W
I 


5
3
5
8


9
 
 


4
1


2
9


 Ir
oq


u
o


is
  D


r 	
M


ad
is


o
n


  W
I 


5
3
7
1
1
 


P
o  


B
ox


  1
2


9
8


 	
W


in
st


o
n


  O
R


 9
7


4
9


6
  
 


3
8


1
 E
 M


a
in


  S
t 	


S
to


u
g


h
to


n  
W


I 
5


3
5


8
9


 


Cu) 
co 
Vv 
CO in 
..,— 
5 
.c 
0 


.0
.--,  


an 
7 
0 
i.,-,  
cfi 


leD 
0 
LO 
X 
0 


CO 


0 
0. P


o  
B


ox
  6


0
6
  
	


S
to


u
g


h
to


n  
W


I 5
3


5
8


9
 
 


30
8 


S
  S


ev
en


th
 S


t 	
S


to
u
g


h
to


n  
W


I 5
3
5
8
9
 


1
0
9
  E


  T
a f


t 
S


t 	
S


to
u


g
h
to


n
  W


I  
5


3
5
8
9
 


1
4


47
 C


ou
n
ty


  H
w


y  
B


 	
C


am
b
ri


dg
e  


W
I 5


3
5
2
3
 
 


1 2
0
2
5
 M


ea
d


o
w


  D
r 	


S
to


u
g
h
to


n
  W


I 5
3


5
8


9
  


P
a  


B
ox


  6
0
6
 	


S
to


u
g
h
to


n
  W


I 5
3
5
8
9
 
 


5
0
9
  E


 Je
ff


er
so


n
  S


t 	
S


to
u


g
h
to


n
  W


I  
53


5
8
9
   


0.1 
....> 
... 
,.-. 


C 
0 
0 


00 
M 
LO 6


2
3
  E


ig
h
t h


 S
t 	


1 


5
7
8
  E


 M
ai


n  
S


t  
 


4
0
9


 E
 Je


ff
e


rs
o


n
  S


t
 
 


4
3
3
  E


 S
ou


th
 S


t  
 


6
2


4
 E
ig


h
th


 S
t  
 


4
0


5
 S
 Si


xt
h
 S


t  
 


5
0
1
 S
 F
ou


rt
h 


S
t  
 


5
0
0
  D


un
ki


rk
 A


ve
  
 


5
0


1
  E


  S
ou


th
 S


t  
 


4
1
8
  S


 Fi
ft


h 
S


t  


5
1


6
 E


 J
ef


fe
rs


o
n
  S


t
  


4
2


4
 S


 Fi
ft


h 
S


t  
 


5
0


8
  6


  M
a


in
  S


t  
 


5
0


0
  D


u
n


ki
rk


 A
ve


  
 


6
1


7
  E


 S
o
u
th


 S
t
 
 


4
1
6
 S


 A
ca


d
e
m


y
  S


t  


3
0
0
 S
 S
ev


en
th


 S
t  
 


4
2
5
  E


  S
o
u
th


 S
t  
 


4
2


1
 S
 Si


xt
h 


S
t  
 


4
2
5
 E


 S
ou


th
 S


t  


4
0


9
  5


  F
o
u


rt
h
 S


t
 
 


3
0
5
 E


 M
ai


n  
S


t  
 


3
8


1
 E
 M


ai
n  
S


t
 
 


6
2
1
 E


  S
ou


t h
 S


t
 
 


5
0


8
 E
 Je


ff
er


so
n  


S
t  
 


5
2
5
 E
ig


h
t h


 S
t  
 


L5
17


  E
ig


h
th


  
S


t
 
 


a-,  
. c 
Fi 


LU 


01 
N 
Lil 5


2
5
 E
 Je


ff
e


rs
o


n
  S


t  
 


5
2


6
 E


 S
ou


th
 S


t  
 


3
0


9
  S


 F
o


u
rt
h
 S


t  
 


4
3
3
  E


  S
o
ut


h
 S


t
 
 


5
1


5
  E


 M
a


in
  S


t
 
 


4.4 
V) 
..0 
C 
111 
> 
0) 


VI 
V) 


CO 
0 
CO 


4- ,
 


 


3
4


1
  E


  M
a


in
  S


t  


VI 
-C 
.• .. 
U 
V1 


01 
r-1 
c--1 15


5
6
 E


 M
ai


n  
S


t  
 


15
09


  E
 Je


ff
er


so
n
  S


t  


C
h
ar


le
s  


&
 A


n
d
re


a  
R


ee
 	


1 
D


on
a
ld


 D
 W


ah
lin


 	
1


 
D


av
id


 &
 S


h
an


n
o


n
  M


c
ki


ch
a


n 	
1 


E
hr


en
  &


 A
m


y  
S


ch
u


lz
  
 


S
te


v
e  


&
 J


u
lie


  D
ic


ks
on


  
 


H
o


ll
ey


  M
o


u
ld


in
g  


In
c  
 


S
to


u
g
h
to


n
,  C


it
y  


O
f
 
	


1 
Je


re
m


y
  &


 K
ri


st
in


e  
A


n
n


en
  
	


1 
S


to
u
g


h
to


n
,  C


it
y  


O
f
 
 


D
on


al
d 


D
 W


a
hl


in
 	


1 
Ja


m
es


  W
 A


ll
en


  
 


M
.  E


ll
en


  A
rn


o
ld


 &
 B


.  W
ag


n
er


 	
1 


D
an


ny
  K


 A
ab


e
rg


  
 


T
er


ry
  &


 S
h


e
ila


  R
ig


d
o
n
  
 


P
ea


r l
 G


 K
itt


le
so


n
  
 


R
ts


m
  P


ro
p


e
rt


ie
s  
L


L
C


 
 


L
ar


ry
  R


o
b


e
rt


s  
A


ut
o
  E


le
ct


ri
c  


In
c 	


1 
Jo


hn
  J


  C
on


w
ay


  
 


L
ar


ry
  R


o
b
e


rt
s  


A
u
to


  E
le


c t
ri


c  
In


c  


A
a


ro
n  


&
 L


is
a  


T
h
o
m


so
n  
 


Ja
m


es
  E


 H
am


m
is


  
 


S
to


u
g
h


to
n


,  C
it


y  
O
f
 
 


S
to


ug
h


to
n


,  
C


it
y  


O
f
 
 


W
 R


ic
h
ar


d
 G


or
d
o
n
  I
I
I
 
 


T
er


ry
  R


ig
d
o
n
  &


 S
h
e


il
a  


R
ig


d
o
n
  
 


M
ar


k
 W


 L
im


pe
rt
 
 


Je
ff


 &
 L


is
a  


N
ye


n
hu


is
  
 


R
an


ey
  E


  R
ee


v
e
s  


II
I  
 


L
ar


ry
  &


  B
re


n
t
 H


aw
ki


ns
  
 


C
la


re
n
ce


  A
 H


aa
se


  
 


G
re


go
ry


  T
 K


er
ke


n
b
u
sh


 
 


R
u


by
  M


 C
re


w
s  
 


K
ev


in
  


P
o


m
er


o
y


  
 


H
ol


le
y  


M
o


u
ld


in
g  


In
c  
 


S
to


u
g
h


to
n


,  
C


ity
  O
f
 
 


D
on


a
ld


 D
 W


a
hl


in
  
 


D
on


a
ld


 W
a


h
lin


  &
 D


D
W


  E
n t


e
rp


ri
se


s  
 


A
rt


h
u


r  
&


 T
a


m
a


la
  R


am
ir


ez
  
 


D
ac


k 
P


ri
n
t  L


LC
  
 


D
av


i d
 M


e
lt


o
n


  
 


W
h
is
tl


e  
S


to
p
  D


ev
e


lo
p


m
en


t  
LL
C


 
 


S
to


u
g


h
to


n
  T


ra
ile


rs
  I


nc
  
 


B
r i


an
  &


 D
eb


o
ra


h
 S


ae
ge


r 	
1 


0
5
1
1
0
8
1


9
95


0
3


  


0
5
1
1
0
8
1
9
9
6
0
1
  


0
5


1
1
05


4
7
2
5
3
4
  


0
5


1
1


0
8
1
3
9
1
3
0
  
 


0
5
1
1
0
8
1
3
9
6
0
2
  
 


0
5


1
1


0
8


1
4


3
1


9
8


  


0
5
1
1
0
8
1 6


2
0


9
7


  


0
5
1
1
0
8
1
1
0
3
4
8
  
 


0
5
1
1
0
8


1
4
4
4
46


 
 


N 
N 
N 
Ln 
LD 
H 
CO 
0 
H 
H 
Lrl 
O 0


5
1
1
0
8
1
1
2
8
8
2
 I


  


0
5
1
1
0
8
1
3
0
0
8
6
 I


 


0
5
1
1
0
8
1
1
0
7


7
7
 


0
5
1
1
0
8
1
3
7
2
3
0
  
 


0
5


1
1


0
8


1
6


3
7


4
7


  


0
5
1
1
0
8
1
1
3
4
1
6
  


H 
00 
0 
rel 
d 
H 
CO 
0 
HI 
H 
U 
o 0


5
11


0
8
1
1
0 4


5
5


  


10
5


1
1


0
8
1
4
3
1
1
6
 


tO 
CO 
'4-  
en 
N 
H 
CO 
0 
H 
H 
U1 
o 10


5
1
1
0
8
1
3
1
0
1
2
  


CO 
U1 
Ul 
s-I 
CO 
H 
00 
0 
HI 
r.1 
L11 
o 


N 
T-1 
01 
00 
CO 
H 
CO 
0 
H 
e...I 
in 
o 


H 
N 
N 
..--I 
tO 
HI 
CO 
0 
HI 
Il 
Lr) 
o 0


5
1
1
0
8
1
1
2
7
7
5
  


0
5
1
1
0
8
1
3
0
1
8
4


 
 


H 
N 
LP 
CC) 
ID 
HI 
CO 
0 
IL-I 
1-1 
in 
0 0


5
1


1
0


8
1


8
1


7
0


9
  


0
5
1
1
0
8
1
1
0
0
1
7
 
 


0
5
1
1
0
8
1
3
1
1
1
0
  


tO 
01 
HI 
N 
CO 
HI 
00 
0 
HI 
1-1 
in 
0 


N 
CO 
01 
0 
CO 
H 
CO 
0 
r-1 
,-1 
in 
0 


N 
0 
N 
m 
CO 
H 
00 
0 
r-I 
1-1 
in 
0 10


5
1


1
0


81
1
1
7
67


 
 


01 
0 
rn 
CO 
H 
H 
CO 
0 
t-I 
e-I 
VI 
0 10


5
1


1
0


8
1


3
0


6
7


5
  
 


0 
CO 
00 
L11 
M 
HI 
CO 
0 
.-1 
r-I 
LA 
0 10


5
1
1
0
8


1
8


0
9


0
6
  
 


N 
0 
01 
,-.F 
CO 
H 
CO 
0 
,-I 
r-k 
in 
0 10


5
1
1
0
8
1
1
0
2
3
1
  


g 4 1 4 4 4. 4 4 4 0 
 If1 


t-i 
V7 


Er'l M 
 V1 


•ZI-  
Vl 


LL/-11 	LO N 00 01 0 H N M .4:1-  01 LO N CO 01 0 1--i NJ Cfr.. 	g IQ ID ..C.  r" ... CO Fl....1 0 
 00 


‘--t 
l70 


ni 
00 


nl 
00 


dr 
00 


1620  








1


Lisa Aide


From: Donna Olson
Sent: Monday, March 05, 2018 10:26 AM
To: Scott Truehl; John Kramper
Cc: Tammy LaBorde
Subject: RE: Stoughton RDA


Please place an item on your next agenda regarding RDA vacancies. There is one due to Ald 
Duranczyk joining the Council and one to fill John’s vacancy. They don’t necessarily need to 
take action this month, but should begin the conversation. 
 
From: Scott Truehl  
Sent: Monday, March 05, 2018 10:24 AM 
To: John Kramper 
Cc: Donna Olson 
Subject: Re: Stoughton RDA 
 
John 
Thank you for all your time and talent.  I wish you well in your career and in McFarland. 
  
  
Scott Truehl 
Alderman District 4 
City of Stoughton 


From: John Kramper <jkramper@msbonline.com> 
Sent: Monday, March 5, 2018 9:23 AM 
To: Scott Truehl 
Subject: Stoughton RDA  
  
Hi Scott, 
  
I wanted to let you know that I will be moving out of the City of Stoughton in the next month or two and will no longer be 
eligible to serve on the Redevelopment Authority. I plan on being a full participant until the time I move. My last meeting 
will be April 11, 2018 unless I move prior to that date. I will be in attendance at the March 14, 2018 meeting as a member of 
the Redevelopment Authority. 
  
If you have any questions, please let me know. 
  
Thank you Scott, 
  
  
  
John Kramper  
Commercial Loan Officer 
NMLS #1670826 







2


  
McFarland State Bank 
5990 US Hwy 51, McFarland, WI 53558 
608.838.5051 direct | 608.712.7605 mobile 
  


 
  
  


 
  
  
Visit us at:  www.msbonline.com 
This message contains confidential and proprietary information of the sender, and is intended only for the person(s) 
to whom it is addressed.  Any use, distribution, copying, or disclosure by any other person is strictly prohibited. If you 
have received this message in error, please notify the email sender immediately, and delete the original message 
without making a copy. 
For your safety, use our Secure e*Mail message center when sending confidential information to us. Simply 
click here or on the Secure e*Mail link found at the bottom of our home page. McFarland State Bank. Member FDIC. 
Equal Housing Lender. NMLS# 596586 
  








 
 


City Logo City of Stoughton, Wisconsin Tax Incremental Financing 
 


  TID #5 BOUNDARY and 
LIFE EXTENSION 
AMENDMENT (Draft) 


   


   
 
 


3/14/2018 
 


Boundary Amendment – Subtraction 1st Draft 
   


 TID #5 was created February 23, 2010 to provide financial support to a 
previously established redevelopment area. This amendment will remove 
properties from the southern part of the TID which faces redevelopment timing 
challenges and are impacting the financial performance of TID #5. A new 
strategy for redevelopment of these properties is being embodied in a new TID 
#8. 







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 1 


TID #5 Boundary Amendment 
 


ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
 
 
 


Stoughton 
Redevelopment 
Authority 


Stoughton Common 
Council 


Stoughton Joint 
Review Board 


Scott Truehl, Chair, Alderperson Donna Olson, Mayor Derek Spellman, Superintendent, 
Stoughton Area School District 


Roger Springman, Vice-Chair, Citizen 
Member 


Tim Swadley, Council President Charles Hicklin 
Chief Financial Officer and Controller, 
Dane County 


Peter Sveum, Citizen Member Sid Boersma, Alderperson Dr. Tim Casper 
VP Institutional Learning & Effectiveness 
Madison College 


Regina Hirsch, Alderperson Regina Hirsch, Alderperson At-Large Member 
 


John Kramper, Citizen Member Kathleen Tass Johnson, 
Alderperson 


City 
Representative  


Ron Christianson, Citizen Member Michael Engelberger, Alderperson  


 
Denise Durancyzk, Citizen Member 


 
Denise Durancyzk, Alderperson 
 
Tom Majewski, Alderperson 
 
Greg Jenson, Alderperson 
 
Lisa Reeves, Alderperson 
 
Patrick O’Connor, Alderperson 
 
Scott Truehl, Alderperson 
 
Matt Bartlett, Alderperson 


 


 
 


City  of  Stoughton Staff  TIF Consultant 


Tammy LaBorde Finance Director 


Rodney Scheel, Planning Director 


Matt Dregne, Stafford Rosenbaum 


City Attorney 


Gary Becker 
GWB Professional Services 
5813 Piping Rock Rd. 
Madison, WI 53711 
(608)444-0836 
Gary.becker.madison@gmail.com 



mailto:Gary.becker.madison@gmail.com





[City logo City of Stoughton, Wisconsin                       Tax Incremental Financing 


1 | P a g e  


 


Table of Contents 


INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................... 1 


PLAN AMENDMENT PROCESS ............................................................................................. 2 


MAP OF BOUNDARY CHANGES ......................................................................................... 4 


PARCELS IMPACTED BY BOUNDARY CHANGE ................................................................... 9 


STATEMENT OF KIND, NUMBER AND LOCATION OF PROPOSED PUBLIC WORKS .......... 17 


ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY STUDY ........................................................................................ 17 
Current Financial Condition .................................................................................................................. 17 
Financial Projections .............................................................................................................................. 18 


Tax Increment Project Costs TID #5 ................................................................................................ 18 
Tax Increment Revenue TID #5 ........................................................................................................ 20 
Tax Increment Cash Flow TID #5 ..................................................................................................... 21 


DETAILED LIST OF PROJECT COSTS ................................................................................... 22 


DESCRIPTION OF FINANCING METHODS AND TIMEFRAME ............................................ 22 


PROPOSED CHANGES IN ZONING ORDINANCES, MASTER PLAN, BUILDING CODES, MAP AND CITY 
ORDINANCES .................................................................................................................... 22 


LIST OF NON-PROJECT COSTS .......................................................................................... 22 


PROPOSED PLAN FOR RELOCATING ANY DISPLACED PERSONS OR BUSINESSES .......... 22 


HOW THE TID PROMOTES THE ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF THE MUNICIPALITY ........... 22 


MAP OF EXISTING USES AND CONDITIONS OF PROPERTY ............................................. 22 


MAP SHOWING PROPOSED USES AND IMPROVEMENTS IN THE DISTRICT ...................... 23 


ATTORNEY’S OPINION LETTER ......................................................................................... 24 


APPENDIX ......................................................................................................................... 25 
Letters to overlying taxing jurisdictions .......................................................................................... 26 


Joint Review Board Meetings .............................................................................................................. 27 
Public Hearing ........................................................................................................................................ 31 


RDA Public Hearing Notice ............................................................................................................... 32 
Joint Review Board Public Hearing Notice .................................................................................... 33 
Property Owners Public Hearing Notice ........................................................................................ 34 
RDA Minutes of Public Hearing ........................................................................................................ 35 


Resolutions ............................................................................................................................................... 36 
RDA Resolution Approving Amendment .......................................................................................... 37 
City Council Resolution Approving Amendment ............................................................................ 38 
JRB Resolution Approving Amendment ........................................................................................... 39 


 







[City logo City of Stoughton, Wisconsin                       Tax Incremental Financing 


1 | P a g e  


 


 
TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension 
Amendment 
 


INTRODUCTION 
City of Stoughton Tax Increment District (TID) #5 was created by resolution of the Stoughton City Council on 
February 23, 2010. The purpose of the district is to fund improvements needed to remove blighting conditions 
along the railroad corridor extending from the Yahara River on the north to the Yahara River on the south. This 
area had been established as Redevelopment Area #1 by the Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton 
(RDA) in March 2008. TID #5 was created to provide a funding mechanism for redevelopment of this blighted 
area. 
 
The initial focus of targeted redevelopment has been the southern portion of the district. This is the area of TID 
#5 that is in greatest need of redevelopment due to the extent and concentration of blighted properties. In the 
months following approval of TID #5, an agreement was negotiated with Movin’ Out, a non-profit developer of 
workforce housing, to redevelop a former Stoughton Trailer storage site along the Yahara River. This project 
resulted in the construction of a 33-unit multi-family residential development which opened in November 2011. 
 
A key strategy for encouraging redevelopment of this area of the TID is the assembly of parcels, demolition of 
existing buildings and offering the site to a master developer. The first parcel to be acquired was the former 
Highway Trailer Building – owned by Stoughton Trailers. Closing occurred on this parcel in April 2010, 
although a deal was negotiated that allowed the City to pay for the property when it was ready to be 
redeveloped or until 2020, whichever came first. 
 
Shortly after the TID was created, 
MillFab, one of the largest 
property owners in the southern 
part of the TID and targeted for 
redevelopment, challenged their 
personal property tax assessment. 
This, combined with a declining 
operation, resulted in a $2 million 
loss of value for this single 
property. The loss in value was 
enough to wipe out the increment 
created by the Movin’ Out 
development and push TID #5 into 
a decrement position.  


0


500000


1000000


1500000


2000000


2500000


3000000


3500000


2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018


To
ta


l A
ss


es
se


d 
V


al
ue


Year


MillFab Change In Assessed Value 2010 - 2018







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 2 


 
In the fall of 2014, MillFab (Holley 
Molding) permanently ceased 
operations and went into 
receivership. The Stoughton RDA 
negotiated for the acquisition of the 
property, which eventually closed 
at the end of 2016. 
 
The RDA issued a solicitation of 
proposals from developers 
interested in being the master 
developer for the riverfront 
redevelopment area. In December 
2016 three proposals were received 
– one proposal to be the master 
developer, a proposal for the 
redevelopment of two parcels on 


the east side of the riverfront redevelopment area and a proposal to rehabilitate the Highway Trailer Building. 
The RDA selected two of the proposals and declined the Highway Trailer Building proposal. The RDA then 
passed a motion to begin planning for the demolition of the Highway Trailer Building. 
 
A community design charrette was planned with the selected master developer and their design team to jointly, 
with the community, prepare a conceptual master plan for the riverfront redevelopment area. The charrette, held 
in June 2017, brought together many voices from the community. A significant outcome of the charrette was the 
realization that the City Council and the RDA differed in how they perceived development occurring, 
particularly regarding the future of the Highway Trailer Building, the construction of additional workforce 
housing units in the area, the tenure of new housing constructed on the site and the role of retail in the 
redevelopment. At this point the master developer decided this was not a situation they were willing to move 
forward with and the City Council rejected the workforce housing proposal. 
 
With development plans now on hold, no developers in hand, significant issues needing to be resolved, the TID 
in an on-going decrement position and the TID clock ticking, the Stoughton City Council decided in December 
2017 to begin planning to subtract the parcels comprising the riverfront redevelopment area from TID #5 and to 
create a new TID #8 for the area being subtracted. The life of TID #5 will also be extended by three years. The 
effect of this strategy is to remove the non-performing property from TID #5, leaving that TID with a positive 
increment balance, re-set the base value of the new TID to the current lower property values and re-set the TIF 
clock to provide sufficient time for the expected scope of development to occur. 


PLAN AMENDMENT PROCESS 
 
The RDA discussed the status of and issues associated with TID #5. At its meeting on November 8, 2017 the 
RDA passed a motion requesting the City Council initiate a process to amend the TID #5 boundary. The City 
Council considered the request at its December 12, 2017 meeting and passed a resolution to initiate the 
boundary amendment process. During the course of planning for the subtraction, it became clear that a life 
extension will also be required to improve the chances of the TID cash flowing before the end of its life. The 
overlying taxing jurisdictions were notified of the City’s intent on xxxxx. The RDA reviewed a draft boundary 


($3,000,000.00)


($2,500,000.00)


($2,000,000.00)


($1,500,000.00)


($1,000,000.00)


($500,000.00)


$0.00


$500,000.00


$1,000,000.00


$1,500,000.00


2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018


Ta
x 


In
cr


em
en


ta
l V


al
ue


Year


TID #5 Tax Incremental Value


TID #5 Total Value







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 3 


amendment at their meeting on xxxxx, 2018 and set the date for the public hearing.  The Joint Review Board 
(JRB) met for its first meeting on xxxx, 2018. A public hearing was held on xxxxx, 2018. The City Council 
considered a resolution amending the boundary of TID #5 at its xxxxx, 2018 meeting. The JRB met on xxxxx, 
2018 to consider the City Council’s resolution and approve the proposed amendment.







[City logo City of Stoughton, Wisconsin                       Tax Incremental Financing 


4 | P a g e  


 


MAP OF BOUNDARY CHANGES 


 







[City logo City of Stoughton, Wisconsin                       Tax Incremental Financing 


5 | P a g e  


 







[City logo City of Stoughton, Wisconsin                       Tax Incremental Financing 


6 | P a g e  


 


City of Stoughton 
TID No. 5 Amended Boundary Description 


 
Located in part of the SE ¼ of the SE ¼, part of the NE ¼ of the SE ¼, and also part of the SW ¼ of the SE ¼, of 
Section 5, and also part of the NE ¼ of the NE ¼, part of the SE ¼ of the NE ¼, part of the SW ¼ of the NE ¼, and 
part of the NW ¼ of the NE ¼, of Section 8, and also part of the NW ¼ of the NW ¼, of Section 9, all being in T. 5 
N., R. 11 E., City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the southwest corner of Lot 5, Block 3, O.M. Turner’s Addition to the City of Stoughton; thence 
South, 1 foot, along the southerly extension of the west line of said Lot 5, Block 3, O.M. Turner’s Addition to the 
City of Stoughton; thence Southwesterly, across East Main Street, to the westernmost corner of Lot 4, Block 2, of 
O.M. Turner’s Park Addition to the City of Stoughton; thence S 29˚33’ E, along the southwesterly line of said, O.M. 
Turner’s Park Addition, 1103.81 feet, more or less, to the southwesterly corner of Lot 12, Block 3, of said O.M. 
Turner’s Park Addition to the City Of Stoughton; thence N 60˚27’ E, along the southeasterly line of said Lot 12, 
Block 3, O.M. Turner’s Park Addition, 132 feet, more or less, to the southeasterly corner of said Lot 12; thence 
continuing N 60˚27’ E, along an extension of the southeasterly line of said Lot 12, Block 3, O.M. Turner’s Park 
Addition, 50 feet, more or less, to the intersection with the northeasterly right-of-way of  South Lynn Street, also 
being the southwesterly line of Lot 10, Block 4, of said O.M. Turner’s Park Addition; thence S 29˚33’ E, along the 
said easterly right-of-way of South Lynn Street, 48.2 feet, more or less, to the southwesterly corner of said Lot 10, 
Block 4, O.M. Turner’s Park Addition to the City of Stoughton; thence N 89˚33’ E, along the south line of said 
Block 4, O.M. Turner’s Addition and the north right-of-way of South Lynn Street, 116 feet, more or less, to the 
southeast corner of said Lot 10; thence continuing N 89˚33’ E, along an easterly extension of the said north right-
of-way of S. Lynn Street, 49.5 feet, more or less, to the intersection with the east right-of-way of Academy Street; 
thence South, along the east right-of-way of Academy Street, 274 feet, more or less, to the southwest corner of 
Lot 7, Block 4, of John Nelson Addition To The City of Stoughton; thence continuing South, along the southerly 
extension of the east right-of-way of Academy Street, 24.75 feet, more or less, to the intersection with the north 
line of the SW ¼ of the NW ¼ of said Section 9; thence S 89˚51’ W, 49.5 feet, more or less, to the Northwest 
Corner of the said SW ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 9, also being the northeast corner of Lot 1, Block 3, of 
Omsberg’s Addition To The City of Stoughton; thence West, along the south right-of-way of South Street, 193 
feet, more or less, to the northeast corner of a parcel described in Quit Claim Deed Document No. 2827548, 
Dane County Register of Deeds; thence South, along the east parcel line of a parcel described in Quit Claim 
Deed Document No. 2827548, Dane County Register of Deeds, 242 feet, more or less, to the intersection with 
the northeasterly right-of-way line of the former C. M. St. P & P. Railroad (now owned by the WI DOT); thence 
Southeasterly, along the northeasterly line of the former C. M. St. P & P. Railroad (now owned by the WI DOT), 
394 feet, more or less, to intersection with the west right-of-way of Academy Street; 
thence South, along the southerly extension of the said right-of-way of Academy Street, 203 feet, more or less, 
to the intersection with the southwesterly right-of-way of the said former C. M. St. P & P. Railroad (now owned 
by the WI DOT); thence Northwesterly, along the former C. M. St. P & P. Railroad (now owned by the WI DOT)  
right-of-way, 191 feet, more or less, to the intersection with the northeasterly extension of the southeasterly line 
of property described in warranty deed document No. 3706265, Dane County Register of Deeds; thence 
Southwesterly, along the said northeasterly extension of the southeasterly line of property described in warranty 
deed document No. 3706265, Dane County Register of Deeds, 66 feet, more or less, to the easterly most corner 
of lands described in said document No. 3706265; thence continuing Southwesterly, along southeasterly line of 
said property described in warranty deed document No. 3706265, Dane County Register of Deeds, 313 feet, 
more or less, to the northeasterly ordinary high water mark of the Yahara River; thence N 27˚05’ W along the 
ordinary high water mark of the Yahara River 350 feet, more or less to the southwest corner of Lot 7, Block 2 of 
Peterson’s Addition to the City of Stoughton; northerly 215 feet, more or less, along the east right-of-way of 8th 
Street to the southwest corner of Lot 9, Block 2 of Peterson’s Addition to the City of Stoughton; thence East 253 
feet, more or less, along the southern line of Lot 9, Block 2 of Peterson’s Addition to the southeast corner of said 
Lot 9 at the intersection with the southeast boundary line of the Peterson’s Addition; thence northeast N 55 ˚ E 
along the southeast boundary of Peterson’s Addition 22 feet more or less to the southeast corner of Lot 6, Block 
2, Peterson’s Addition; thence southeast S 64 ˚ 5’ E 66 feet more or less to the northern boundary of Lot 1, CSM 







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 7 


13030 CS 83/173 & 176; thence northeasterly N 27 ˚ 50’ 132 feet, more or less, along the north boundary of Lot 1, 
CSM 13030 CS 83/173 & 176 to the northeast corner of Lot 1, CSM 13030 CS 83/173 & 176 and the westerly right-
of-way of Dunkirk Ave.; thence continuing along the extension of the north boundary 66 feet to the easterly 
right-of-way of Dunkirk Ave. and the former C. M. St. P & P. Railroad (now owned by the WI DOT); thence 
northwesterly, along the former C. M. St. P & P. Railroad (now owned by the WI DOT) right-of-way, 528 feet, 
more or less, to the southern right-of-way of East South St.; thence westerly 27 feet, more or less, along the 
southern right-of-way of East South St.; thence southwest S 27 ˚ W 80 feet, more or less, to the northern right-of-
way of Dunkirk Ave.; thence northwesterly N 25 ˚W 130 feet, more or less to the intersection with the southerly 
right-of-way of East South St.; thence northwesterly N 44 ˚ 45’ W 27 feet, more or less, to the southeast corner of 
Lot 6, Block 44 of Original Plat; thence along the easterly boundary of the Original Plat 153 feet, more or less, to 
the northeast corner of Lot 6, Block 44 of the Original Plat; thence westerly 195 feet, more or less, along the 
north lot lines of Lot 5 and Lot 4, Block 44 of the Original Plat to the easterly right-of-way of South Seventh St.; 
thence westerly 66 feet, more or less, to the westerly right-of-way of South Seventh St. and the northeast corner 
of Lot 8, Block 43 of the Original Plat; thence westerly along the north boundary line of Lot 8, Lot 7, Lot 6, and Lot 
5, Block 43 of the Original Plat; thence 265 feet, more or less to the northwest corner of Lot 5, Block 43 of the 
Original Plat and the easterly right-of-way of South Sixth St.; thence westerly 66 feet, more or less, to the westerly 
right-of-way of South Sixth St. and the northeast corner of Lot 8, Block 42 of the Original Plat; thence westerly 265 
feet, more or less, to the northwest corner of Lot 5, Block 42 of the Original Plat and the easterly right-of-way of 
South Fifth St.; thence westerly 66 feet, more or less, to the westerly right-of-way of South Fifth St. and the 
northeast corner of Lot 8, Block 36 of the Original Plat; thence westerly 265 feet, more or less, to the northwest 
corner of Lot 5, Block 36 of the Original Plat and the easterly right-of-way of South Fourth St.; thence westerly 66 
feet, more or less, to the westerly right-of-way of South Fourth St. and the northeast corner of Lot 8, Block 33 of 
the Original Plat; thence North, along the west right-of-way of Fourth Street, 530 feet, more or less, to the 
intersection with the north right-of-way of Main Street, also being the southeast corner of Lot 8, Block 31, 
Original Plat of Stoughton; thence East, along the north right-of-way of Main Street, 450 feet, more or less, to a 
point on the south line of Lot 9, Block 40, Original Plat of Stoughton that is 54 feet east of the southwest corner of 
said Lot 9; thence Northeasterly, along the northerly right-of-way of Main Street, 25.7 feet, more or less, to a 
point on the southeast line of Lot 9, Block 40, Original Plat of Stoughton lying 15 feet northeasterly of the 
southeast most corner of said Lot 9; thence N 54˚ E, along the northerly right-of-way of Main Street, 66.5 feet, 
more or less, to a corner of Lot 9, Block 40, Original Plat of Stoughton; thence North, along the east line of Lots 5 
through 9, Block 40, of the Original Plat of Stoughton, 281 feet, more or less, to the northeast corner of Lot 5, 
Block 40, Original Plat of Stoughton; thence East, along the south line of Lot 4, Block 40, of the Original Plat of 
Stoughton, 23 feet, more or less, to a corner of property described in warranty deed document No. 4120676, 
Dane County Register of Deeds; thence North, along the west line of property described in warranty deed 
document No. 4120676,  Dane County Register of Deeds, 99 feet, more or less, to the intersection with the north 
line of the south one-half of Lot 3, Block 40, Original Plat of Stoughton; thence East, along the north line of the 
south one-half of Lot 3, Block 40, Original Plat of Stoughton, to the intersection with the northwesterly line of Lot 
17, Block 40, Original Plat of Stoughton; thence Northeasterly, along the northwesterly line of Lot 17, Block 40, 
Original Plat of Stoughton, to the intersection with the southwesterly line of Certified Survey Map No. 4522 as 
recorded in Volume 19, Pages 277-280, of Certified Survey Maps of Dane County; thence N 30˚05’16” W, along 
the southwesterly line of Lots 2 and 3 of said Certified Survey Map No. 4522, being the northwest corner of Lot 3 
of said Certified Survey Map No. 4522; thence S 89˚30’16” E, along the south right-of-way of North Street, also 
being the north line of Lot 3 of said Certified Survey Map  No. 4522,  26.98 feet, to the northeast corner of  Lot 3, 
of said Certified Survey Map No. 4522; thence N 0˚30’22” E, along the west line of Lot 2 of said Certified Survey 
Map No. 4522, 366.98 feet, to the intersection with the southwesterly line of the former C. M. St. P & P. Railroad 
(now owned by the WI DOT), also being the north corner of said Lot 2; thence S 30˚05’16” E, along the 
northeasterly line of Lot 2, said Certified Survey Map No. 4522, 40 feet, more or less, to the intersection with the 
southwesterly extension of the northwesterly line of Certified Survey Map No. 12811 as recorded in Volume 81, 
Pages 126-131, of Certified Survey Maps of Dane County; thence N 59˚54’34” E, along the said southwesterly 
extension of the northwesterly line of said Certified Survey Map  No. 12811, 82.5 feet, to the northwesterly corner 
of Lot 1 of said Certified Survey Map  No. 12811; thence Northwesterly, along the northeasterly line of lands 
owned by the WI DOT being 33 feet northeasterly of and parallel with the main railroad track, 682 feet, more or 
less, to the northwest corner of lands described in Volume 175984 of Records, Page 1, Dane County Register of 
Deeds; thence Northeasterly, 16.5 feet, along the northwesterly line of lands described in Volume 175984 of 







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 8 


Records, Page 1, Dane County Register of Deeds to the northeast corner thereof; thence Northwesterly, along 
the northeasterly line of the former C. M. St. P & P. Railroad (now owned by the WI DOT), 130 feet, more or less, 
to the intersection with the southerly ordinary high water mark of the Yahara River; thence Northeasterly, 
Easterly, and Southeasterly along the southerly ordinary high water mark of the Yahara River, to the intersection 
with the east line of Lot 14, Block 6, of O.M. Turner’s Addition to the Village of Stoughton; thence Southerly, 
along the east line of Lot 14, Block 6, of O.M. Turner’s Addition to the Village of Stoughton, 486 feet, more or less, 
to the intersection of the north line of the South 132 feet of Lot 14, O.M. Turner’s Addition to the Village of 
Stoughton; thence West, along the north line of the South 132 feet of Lot 14, Block 6, of O.M. Turner’s Addition to 
the Village of Stoughton, 66 feet, more or less, to the northeast corner of Lot 1, Certified Survey Map No. 11636 
as recorded in Volume 71, Pages 103-104, of Certified Survey Maps of Dane County in the Dane County 
Register of Deeds Office; thence N 89˚08’12” W, along the north line of said Certified Survey Map No. 11636, 
148.00 feet, to the east R/W of Ridgeway Street; thence S 00˚34’51” E, along the east right-of-way of Ridgeway 
Street, 132.05 feet, to the southwest corner of said Lot 1, Certified Survey Map No. 11636; thence S 89˚08’12” E, 
along the north right-of-way of Ridge Street, 82 feet, more or less, to the intersection with the northerly extension 
of the east line of Lot 16, Block 6, of O.M. Turner’s Addition to the Village of Stoughton; thence Southerly, along 
the said northerly extension of the east line of Lot 16, Block 6, of O.M. Turner’s Addition to the Village of 
Stoughton, 66 feet, more or less, to the intersection with the south right-of-way of Ridge Street; thence 
continuing Southerly, 198 feet, more or less, along the east line of Lot 16, Block 6, of O.M. Turner’s Addition to the 
Village of Stoughton, to the northeast corner of Lot 29, Block 6, O.M. Turner’s Addition to the Village of 
Stoughton, also being a corner on the east side of Certified Survey Map No. 12811 as recorded in Volume 81, 
Pages 126-131, of Certified Survey Maps of Dane County in the Dane County Register of Deeds Office, lying S 
01˚22’54” W of the northeast corner of Lot 1 of said Certified Survey Map No. 12811; thence S 88˚37’06” W, 
along the easterly side of Lot 1 of  said Certified Survey Map No. 12811, 15.00 feet; thence S 01˚22’54” E, along 
the easterly side of said Certified Survey Map No. 12811, 66.05; thence N 88˚37’06” E, along the easterly side of 
said Certified Survey Map No. 12811, 15.00; thence S 01˚22’54” E, along the easterly side of said Certified Survey 
Map No. 12811, 187.87; thence S 30˚05’26” E, along the easterly side of said Certified Survey Map No. 12811, 
11.76; thence N 88˚34’24” E, along the north line of Lot 2 of said Certified Survey Map No. 12811, 125.98 feet, to 
the northeast corner of said Lot 2; thence continuing N 88˚34’24” E, along the easterly extension of the north line 
of Lot 2 of said Certified Survey Map No. 12811, 66 feet more or less, to the intersection with the east right-of-
way of Hillside Street; thence South, along the east right-of-way of Hillside Street, 132 feet, more or less, to the 
point of beginning. 
 


All distances are per documents of record. 
 


EXCLUDING all wetlands from the above described lands. 







[City logo City of Stoughton, Wisconsin                       Tax Incremental Financing 


9 | P a g e  


 


PARCELS IMPACTED BY BOUNDARY CHANGE 


Parcels to be Removed from TID #5: 


PIN OWNERS 
PROPERTY 
ADDRESS 


2017 Land 
Value 


2017 
Improvement 
Value 


2017 Total 
Value 


2009 
Blight 


2009 Total 
Value 


Incremental 
Value 


 6  KYLE L ERICKSON 421 S SIXTH ST $13,900 $109,800 $123,700   $123,700 $0 
 7  L B PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC 425 S SIXTH ST $24,300 $360,400 $384,700   $384,700 $0 
 8  STEVEN L DICKSON & JULIE F DICKSON 415 S SEVENTH ST $22,700 $84,800 $107,500   $107,500 $0 
 9  DIANE C SPROUL 516 E SOUTH ST $34,800 $115,800 $150,600   $150,600 $0 
 10  RUBY M CREWS 526 E SOUTH ST $43,400 $126,300 $169,700   $169,700 $0 
 11  LARRY R FRANKLIN & AMY L FRANKLIN 418 S SEVENTH ST $17,400 $105,000 $122,400   $122,400 $0 


 15  
JASON S BROWN & GAYLE WALHELM-
BROWN 419 S SEVENTH ST $15,700 $112,800 $128,500   $128,500 $0 


 16  TERESA L SEAMONSON 616 E SOUTH ST $15,700 $104,000 $119,700   $119,700 $0 


 17  Current Owner 
416 S ACADEMY 
ST $600 $0 $600   $600 $0 


 25  NICOLE E EHR 425 S SEVENTH ST $13,900 $106,700 $120,600   $120,600 $0 
 26  EMILY BAHR 624 E SOUTH ST $29,600 $108,600 $138,200   $138,200 $0 
 35  STEVE DICKSON & JULIANA DICKSON 417 S FOURTH ST $17,400 $106,900 $124,300   $124,300 $0 
 39  TYSON G POOCH 316 E SOUTH ST $34,800 $104,300 $139,100   $139,100 $0 
 40  RANEY E REEVES III 418 S FIFTH ST $22,700 $107,400 $130,100   $130,100 $0 
 42  STEVE DICKSON & JULIANA DICKSON 425 S FOURTH ST $19,600 $80,600 $100,200 Y $100,200 $0 
 43  RICHARD L STIRR & GAIL M STIRR 308 E SOUTH ST $34,800 $113,800 $148,600   $148,600 $0 
 44  Current Owner 424 S FIFTH ST $13,600 $21,000 $34,600 Y $34,600 $0 
 73  JEFFREY JUMP & CONNIE JUMP 415 S FIFTH ST $20,900 $138,300 $159,200   $159,200 $0 
 79  CATHY L DICKINSON 418 S SIXTH ST $34,800 $113,500 $148,300   $148,300 $0 
 80  ASSOCIATED BANK NA 425 E SOUTH ST $43,900 $130,400 $174,300   $174,300 $0 
 81  ASSOCIATED BANK NA 425 E SOUTH ST $400 $0 $400   $400 $0 
 82  STOUGHTON REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 433 E SOUTH ST $0 $0 $0 Y $17,500 -$17,500 
 83  STOUGHTON REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 433 E SOUTH ST $0 $0 $0 Y $489,500 -$489,500 







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 10 


PIN OWNERS 
PROPERTY 
ADDRESS 


2017 Land 
Value 


2017 
Improvement 
Value 


2017 Total 
Value 


2009 
Blight 


2009 Total 
Value 


Incremental 
Value 


 84  VS OF MADISON LLP 409 E SOUTH ST $33,100 $92,200 $125,300   $125,300 $0 
 85  MASON PARKS 401 E SOUTH ST $34,800 $97,500 $132,300   $132,300 $0 
 86  CARRIE M BERGMAN 421 S FIFTH ST $33,100 $89,100 $122,200   $122,200 $0 
 87  JUDITH A HUBERD 425 S FIFTH ST $19,000 $79,800 $98,800 Y $98,800 $0 
 88  Current Owner 416 E SOUTH ST $14,800 $50,100 $64,900   $64,900 $0 
 89  Current Owner 424 S SIXTH ST $20,000 $94,500 $114,500   $114,500 $0 
 90  CAPITAL INVESTMENTS 415 E SOUTH ST LLC 415 E SOUTH ST $19,200 $89,900 $109,100   $109,100 $0 


 91  
JOHN ROBERT SCOTT & ANGELA MARIE 
UECKER 317 E SOUTH ST $34,800 $137,100 $171,900   $171,900 $0 


 92  STOUGHTON, CITY OF 501 S FOURTH ST $0 $0 $0   $0 $0 
 93  STOUGHTON, CITY OF 515 S FOURTH ST $0 $0 $0   $0 $0 
 94  WILLIAM S DUTER 325 E SOUTH ST $34,800 $50,600 $85,400   $85,400 $0 
 95  Current Owner 616 EIGHTH ST $42,400 $103,700 $146,100   $146,100 $0 
 96  STOUGHTON TRAILERS INC 524 EIGHTH ST $82,200 $469,800 $552,000 Y $500,200 $51,800 
 97  W RICHARD GORDON III 621 E SOUTH ST $17,400 $93,600 $111,000   $111,000 $0 
 98  STOUGHTON, CITY OF 624 EIGHTH ST $0 $0 $0   $0 $0 
 99  JUAN OLVEDA & LISA OLVEDA 508 DUNKIRK AVE $15,700 $88,200 $103,900   $103,900 $0 
 
100  TIMOTHY G FRANK 516 DUNKIRK AVE $33,100 $126,200 $159,300   $159,300 $0 
 
101  JIMMY B YOST & ROSE A YOST 532 DUNKIRK AVE $34,800 $100,800 $135,600   $135,600 $0 
 
102  


RICHARD H BJORDAHL & NANCEE L 
BJORDAHL 540 DUNKIRK AVE $34,800 $102,500 $137,300   $137,300 $0 


 
103  JOHN R STOKSTAD & SHEILA B STOKSTAD 600 DUNKIRK AVE $52,000 $145,200 $197,200   $197,200 $0 
 
104  SIGMUND A OLSON & CAROLYN M OLSON 609 EIGHTH ST $34,800 $124,200 $159,000   $159,000 $0 
 
105  SHEIL PROPERTIES LLC 525 EIGHTH ST $58,000 $217,400 $275,400   $275,400 $0 
 
106  TERRY J RIGDON & SHEILA M RIGDON 500 DUNKIRK AVE $24,400 $150,800 $175,200   $175,200 $0 


Parcels to be Removed 







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 11 


PIN OWNERS 
PROPERTY 
ADDRESS 


2017 Land 
Value 


2017 
Improvement 
Value 


2017 Total 
Value 


2009 
Blight 


2009 Total 
Value 


Incremental 
Value 


 
107  TIMOTHY D THOMAS & CAROL L THOMAS 509 S SEVENTH ST $32,600 $122,300 $154,900   $154,900 $0 
 
108  


CITY OF STOUGHTON REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 501 E SOUTH ST $0 $0 $0 Y $77,900 -$77,900 


 
109  


GORDON A JOHNSON & SHERRY L 
JOHNSON 616 DUNKIRK AVE $0 $0 $0   $0 $0 


 
110  JOSEPH G BAWULSKI 601 EIGHTH ST $34,800 $79,100 $113,900   $113,900 $0 
 
111  LARRY B HAWKINS & BRENT A HAWKINS 517 EIGHTH ST $29,600 $95,700 $125,300   $125,300 $0 
 
112  TERRY RIGDON & SHEILA M RIGDON 500 DUNKIRK AVE $13,100 $0 $13,100   $13,100 $0 
 
113  STOUGHTON TRAILERS INC 524 EIGHTH ST $54,100 $1,200 $55,300 Y $29,100 $26,200 
 
114  GREEN ANGEL LLC 517 S SEVENTH ST $19,200 $78,700 $97,900   $97,900 $0 
 
115  STOUGHTON REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 433 E SOUTH ST $0 $0 $0 Y $20,300 -$20,300 
 
116  STOUGHTON REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 433 E SOUTH ST $0 $0 $0 Y $15,800 -$15,800 
 
117  STOUGHTON REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 433 E SOUTH ST $0 $0 $0 Y $294,400 -$294,400 
 
118  STOUGHTON REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 433 E SOUTH ST $0 $0 $0 Y $0 $0 
 
129  PEARL G KITTLESON 617 E SOUTH ST $26,100 $125,300 $151,400   $151,400 $0 
 
130  JENNIFER HARRIS 609 E SOUTH ST $19,200 $124,100 $143,300   $143,300 $0 
 
132  


STOUGHTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS JT SCHOOL 
DIST NO 3 


600 MANDT 
PKWY $0 $0 $0 Y $0 $0 


 
135  


GORDON A JOHNSON & SHERRY L 
JOHNSON 616 DUNKIRK AVE $34,800 $138,700 $173,500   $173,500 $0 


Parcels to be Removed 







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 12 


        
Source: 2017 Parcel Data, Dane County Land Information 
Office; Wisconsin Dept. of Revenue; GWB Professional 
Services Total $1,411,600 $5,518,700 $6,930,300 15.1 $7,767,700 -$837,400 


  Manufacturing Property 2010 Original TID #5 $2,547,000 $7,690,600 
$10,237,60


0 59.5% 
$10,237,60


0   


  Municipal Property 2010 
Subtraction % of 
TID 5 55% 72% 68%   76%   


 


Parcels to be Removed 







[City logo City of Stoughton, Wisconsin                       Tax Incremental Financing 


13 | P a g e  


 


Parcels to Remain in TID #5: 


PIN OWNERS PROPERTYADDRESS Acres 
2017 Land 
Value 


2017 
Improvement 
Value 


2017 Total 
Value 


Land 
Value 
per Acre 


Improvement 
Value per 
Acre 


2010 
Blight 


1 
STOUGHTON 
TRAILERS INC 416 S ACADEMY ST 5.35 $231,800 $922,200 $1,154,000 $43,336 $172,409 Y 


2 Current Owner 525 E JEFFERSON ST 0.20 $34,800 $105,000 $139,800 $175,151 $528,471   


3 
HOWARD G 
BRANTMEYER  517 E JEFFERSON ST 0.20 $34,800 $156,400 $191,200 $172,691 $776,117   


4 
BROCK THOMAS 
BARBER 509 E JEFFERSON ST 0.20 $34,800 $93,300 $128,100 $172,691 $462,990   


5 JENNA HOMBURG 405 S SIXTH ST 0.20 $34,800 $127,900 $162,700 $172,691 $634,689   
12 DAVID A GOEDEN 401 S SEVENTH ST 0.25 $33,100 $123,200 $156,300 $132,056 $491,521   
13 Current Owner 407 S SEVENTH ST 0.21 $31,400 $191,200 $222,600 $153,019 $931,759   


14 
STEVE DICKSON & 
JULIE DICKSON 409 S SEVENTH ST 0.27 $40,500 $72,100 $112,600 $152,189 $270,934   


18 LYNN M HULL 501 E MAIN ST 0.18 $27,700 $109,600 $137,300 $150,422 $595,172 Y 
19 LYNN M HULL 201 S SIXTH ST 0.23 $39,400 $79,200 $118,600 $171,384 $344,508 Y 
20 LYNN M HULL 209 S SIXTH ST 0.13 $24,400 $68,800 $93,200 $192,286 $542,184   
21 LYNN M HULL 209 S SIXTH ST 0.14 $26,100 $0 $26,100 $191,110 $0   


22 
MARK WILLIAM 
LIMPERT  508 E JEFFERSON ST 0.20 $34,800 $156,300 $191,100 $171,144 $768,671   


23 JAMES W ALLEN 516 E JEFFERSON ST 0.14 $22,700 $167,900 $190,600 $159,142 $1,177,086   
24 ELISSA GLEBS 316 S SEVENTH ST 0.14 $24,400 $113,200 $137,600 $176,291 $817,875   
27 BRYAN RICHGELS 208 S SEVENTH ST 0.16 $24,400 $125,400 $149,800 $150,402 $772,966   
28 SUSAN M MAPES 309 S SIXTH ST 0.27 $42,000 $112,500 $154,500 $155,495 $416,504   


29 
CHRISTOPHER J 
PROUGH 500 E JEFFERSON ST 0.20 $34,800 $105,100 $139,900 $171,144 $516,874   


30 
STEVE DICKSON & 
JULIE DICKSON 524 E JEFFERSON ST 0.13 $20,900 $122,400 $143,300 $162,184 $949,822   


31 Current Owner 308 S SEVENTH ST 0.20 $31,400 $114,000 $145,400 $158,277 $574,637   


32 
SARAH J 
DOMBROWSKI 300 S SEVENTH ST 0.15 $22,700 $63,700 $86,400 $156,488 $439,130   







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 14 


PIN OWNERS PROPERTYADDRESS Acres 
2017 Land 
Value 


2017 
Improvement 
Value 


2017 Total 
Value 


Land 
Value 
per Acre 


Improvement 
Value per 
Acre 


2010 
Blight 


33 Current Owner 307 E JEFFERSON ST 0.06 $10,500 $90,400 $100,900 $180,450 $1,553,586   


34 
RONALD A 
CHRISTIANSON  401 S FOURTH ST 0.09 $15,700 $146,300 $162,000 $167,878 $1,564,362   


36 JOSEPH J CABIBBO  404 S FIFTH ST 0.40 $48,100 $245,500 $293,600 $119,653 $610,701   
37 MVB PROPERTIES LLC 311 E JEFFERSON ST 0.05 $8,700 $105,400 $114,100 $172,320 $2,087,643   
38 AARON D THOMSON 409 S FOURTH ST 0.20 $34,800 $102,400 $137,200 $173,999 $511,997   
41 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 381 E MAIN ST 0.33 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   
45 DACK PRINT LLC 341 E MAIN ST 0.06 $17,700 $0 $17,700 $287,182 $0   
46 DACK PRINT LLC 341 E MAIN ST 0.06 $17,700 $0 $17,700 $287,371 $0   
47 DACK PRINT LLC 315 E MAIN ST 0.06 $16,500 $59,300 $75,800 $291,692 $1,048,324   
48 KENDALL L GULSETH  357 E MAIN ST 0.06 $17,700 $148,900 $166,600 $286,242 $2,407,989   
49 DACK PRINT LLC 345 E MAIN ST 0.12 $35,400 $180,300 $215,700 $286,644 $1,459,940   
50 KEVIN POMEROY 309 S FOURTH ST 0.07 $10,500 $81,900 $92,400 $158,502 $1,236,315   
51 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 321 S FOURTH ST 0.40 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   
52 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 324 S FIFTH ST 0.20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   
53 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 381 E MAIN ST 0.20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   
54 CHRIS GENTILLI 217 S FIFTH ST 0.02 $300 $0 $300 $15,991 $0 Y 


55 
BERNARD C 
AMUNDSON  500 E MAIN ST 0.39 $61,600 $54,900 $116,500 $158,454 $141,220 Y 


56 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 317 S FIFTH ST 0.16 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   
57 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 408 E JEFFERSON ST 0.10 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   
58 DAVID MELTON 480 E MAIN ST 0.77 $91,000 $7,000 $98,000 $118,530 $9,118 Y 
59 DANNY K AABERG 508 E MAIN ST 0.20 $31,200 $179,300 $210,500 $157,510 $905,176 Y 
60 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 401 E MAIN ST 0.07 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   
61 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 309 S FIFTH ST 0.21 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   
62 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 404 E JEFFERSON ST 0.15 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   
63 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 416 E JEFFERSON ST 0.15 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   
64 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 324 S SIXTH ST 0.10 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   
65 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 316 S SIXTH ST 0.15 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   
66 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 308 S SIXTH ST 0.21 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   


Parcels to be Remain in TID 5 







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 15 


PIN OWNERS PROPERTYADDRESS Acres 
2017 Land 
Value 


2017 
Improvement 
Value 


2017 Total 
Value 


Land 
Value 
per Acre 


Improvement 
Value per 
Acre 


2010 
Blight 


67 
JERRY W KING & 
MAXINE J KING 300 S SIXTH ST 0.06 $16,300 $49,000 $65,300 $260,034 $781,698 Y 


68 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 413 E MAIN ST 0.21 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   
69 ELSING REV LIVING TR 421 E MAIN ST 0.12 $27,300 $95,300 $122,600 $230,173 $803,497 Y 
70 DANNY K AABERG 417 E JEFFERSON ST 0.20 $34,800 $224,600 $259,400 $172,659 $1,114,346   


71 
EHREN D SCHULZ & 
AMY J SCHULZ 409 E JEFFERSON ST 0.20 $34,800 $106,700 $141,500 $172,524 $528,974   


72 
RICHARD R SMITH & 
SUSAN M SMITH 401 S FIFTH ST 0.10 $17,400 $106,600 $124,000 $172,691 $1,057,980   


74 DANNY NABERG 210 S SIXTH ST 0.04 $5,200 $57,200 $62,400 $117,149 $1,288,644 Y 
75 Current Owner 419 E MAIN ST 0.04 $10,800 $158,000 $168,800 $298,800 $4,371,332 Y 
76 MELTON SERVICE LLC 435 E MAIN ST 0.14 $44,200 $83,700 $127,900 $323,397 $612,406   
77 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 425 E JEFFERSON ST 0.20 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   
78 AUGUSTA REALTY INC 409 S FIFTH ST 0.10 $17,400 $184,800 $202,200 $172,074 $1,827,539   


119 WI DOT   ROW $0 $0 $0 #VALUE! #VALUE!   
120 Current Owner 524 E MAIN ST 0.19 $29,400 $170,900 $200,300 $156,181 $907,869   


121 
VIKING WAREHOUSE 
AND STORAGE LLC 516 E MAIN ST 2.09 $75,600 $168,300 $243,900 $36,181 $80,546 Y 


122 CLARENCE A HAASE 529 E MAIN ST 0.12 $9,800 $26,900 $36,700 $84,662 $232,390 Y 


123 CLARENCE A HAASE 
529 E MAIN ST UNIT 
1/2 0.06 $4,900 $36,400 $41,300 $84,116 $624,863 Y 


124 
STOUGHTON 
TRAILERS INC 567 E MAIN ST 0.19 $16,900 $166,100 $183,000 $87,068 $855,741 Y 


125 
CLARK LIVING TR, 
JERRY L 809 E SOUTH ST 0.38 $6,400 $117,200 $123,600 $16,672 $305,297 Y 


126 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 532 E MAIN ST ROW $0 $0 $0 #VALUE! #VALUE!   
127 WI DOT   ROW $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   
128 Current Owner 515 E MAIN ST 4.83 $74,000 $301,800 $375,800 $15,336 $62,546 Y 


131 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 
REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY   0.60 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 Y 


133 
MOVIN' OUT 
STOUGHTON LLC 631 EIGHTH ST 2.00 $381,800 $589,100 $970,900 $190,900 $294,550 Y 


Parcels to be Remain in TID 5 







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 16 


PIN OWNERS PROPERTYADDRESS Acres 
2017 Land 
Value 


2017 
Improvement 
Value 


2017 Total 
Value 


Land 
Value 
per Acre 


Improvement 
Value per 
Acre 


2010 
Blight 


134 CHARLES M REE  638 DUNKIRK AVE 0.42 $50,600 $69,300 $119,900 $121,852 $166,885   


136 
SHANNON E 
MCKICHAN  578 E MAIN ST 0.45 $41,800 $133,200 $175,000 $92,197 $293,796 Y 


137 POC LLC 556 E MAIN ST 2.57 $199,900 $150,100 $350,000 $77,769 $58,395 Y 


138 
I-K-I 
MANUFACTURING  409 RIDGE ST 2.99 $91,600 $152,300 $243,900 $30,663 $50,983   


139 
I-K-I 
MANUFACTURING  430 RIDGE ST 0.20 $17,400 $0 $17,400 $86,789 $0   


140 
I-K-I 
MANUFACTURING  


316 COOPERS 
CSWY 0.33 $800 $0 $800 $2,445 $0   


141 
I-K-I 
MANUFACTURING  


300 COOPERS 
CSWY 0.73 $7,100 $0 $7,100 $9,688 $0   


142 
I-K-I 
MANUFACTURING  418 RIDGE ST 5.99 $40,100 $0 $40,100 $6,696 $0   


143 
I-K-I 
MANUFACTURING  


308 COOPERS 
CSWY 0.20 $3,500 $0 $3,500 $17,696 $0   


  
144  


I-K-I 
MANUFACTURING  409 RIDGE ST 0.26 $10,500 $0 $10,500 $40,536 $0   


145 DAVID MELTON 119 S FIFTH ST 0.20 $7,600 $12,100 $19,700 $37,680 $59,990   


  Total 40.39 $2,547,000 $7,690,600 $10,237,600   
Acres 
Blighted 20.7 


     % of Area 51.2% 
 


 


Parcels to be Remain in TID 5 







[City logo City of Stoughton, Wisconsin                       Tax Incremental Financing 


17 | P a g e  


 


STATEMENT OF KIND, NUMBER AND LOCATION OF PROPOSED PUBLIC WORKS 
 
This boundary and life extension amendment makes no changes to the statement of kind, number or location of 
proposed public works. 
 
Improvements planned for the riverfront redevelopment area – the southern end of TID #5 and the area being 
subtracted, will now mostly be charged to the new TID #8. However, TIF statutes allow expenditures to be 
made within ½ mile of a TID. The City of Stoughton is keeping its options open by continuing to allow these as 
eligible expenditures against TID #5. 


ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY STUDY 


Current Financial Condition 
 
FIGURE 1: SUMMARY OF PROJECT COSTS, REVENUES AND NET COSTS 


Insert page from audit of TID #5 
 
SOURCE: 2017 AUDIT OF TID #5 PREPARED BY XXXXXX 


 
FIGURE 2: SUMMARY OF SOURCES, USES AND STATUS OF FUNDS 


Insert page from audit of TID #5 


 
SOURCE: 2017 AUDIT OF TID #5 PREPARED BY XXXXXXXX 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 18 


Financial Projections 


Tax Increment Project Costs TID #5 


An estimate of the project costs incurred to date in TID #5. Minimal additional expenses are expected to be 
incurred. 
 


      % Paid By 
Costs 


Allocated 
 Type of Expenditure Amount Project Other to Project 


       
A. Capital Costs         
  Total Capital Costs $0 100% 0% $0  
        
B. Infrastructure      
    $0 100% 0% $0  
  Total Infrastructure $0 100% 0% $0  
        
C. Site Development Costs         
  ALTA Survey $23,050 100% 0% $23,050  
  HTB Historic Investigation $1,785 100% 0% $1,785  
  Advertisement for Demolition Bid Notice $154 100% 0% $154  
  MillFab - Removal of Hazardous Material $14,779 100% 0% $14,779  
  MillFab Demolition $322,000 50% 50% $161,000  
  MillFab Demolition Testing, Plans, Specs, Oversight $47,912 100% 0% $47,912  
  MillFab - Removal of Power Pole $1,288 100% 0% $1,288  
  MillFab - Environmental Investigation/Remediation $30,000  0% -100% $0  
  Carpet Warehouse Demolition $48,300 100% 0% $48,300  
  Carpet Warehouse Hazardous Material Removal $10,283 100% 0% $10,283  
  Highway Trailer Demolition  100% 0% $0  
  Environmental Remediation Elven Sted I $300,000 0% -100% $0  
            
  Total Site Development Costs $799,551 39% 61% $308,551 
        
D. Land Acquisition & Assembly         


  Highway Trailer Phase 1 Update $23,800 100% 0% $23,800  
  Stoughton Trailer Storage Lot (Elven Sted I) $130,500 100% 0% $130,500  
  Sale of Storage Lot to Elven Sted I -$1 100% 0% ($1) 
  MillFab Appraisal $3,200 100% 0% $3,200  
            


  Total Land Acquisition & Assembly $157,499 100% 0% $157,499 
        
E. Development Incentives         
  Elven Sted Phase I $428,000  100% 0% $428,000  
  Incentives for Unknown Development $0 100% 0% $0  


  Total Development Incentives $428,000 100% 0% $428,000 
        
F. Professional Services         
  Planning - Costs to May 30, 2017 $57,959  100% 0% $57,959  







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 19 


 


  


  Planning - Incubator Feasibility Study $20,000  50% 50% $10,000  
  Design Charette  $30,000  50% 50% $15,000  
  Redevelopment Area Due Diligence $41,500  76% 24% $31,540  
  Attorney - Costs to May 30, 2017 $259  100% 0% $259  
  Auditor - Costs to May 30, 2017 $1,383  100% 0% $1,383  
        
  Total Professional Services $151,101 77% 23% $116,141 
        
G. Discretionary Payments         
    100% 0% $0 
        
H. Administration Costs         
   $0  100% 0% $0  
        
I. Organization & Administration Costs       
  Department of Revenue Submittal Fee $1,000  100% 0% $1,000  
  Professional Fees $30,000  100% 0% $30,000  
  City Staff & Publishing $2,500  100% 0% $2,500  


  Total Organization Costs $33,500  100% 0% $33,500  
        
  Inflation $0  100% 0% $0  
  Total Project Costs $1,569,651  66% 34% $1,043,691  
        


J. 
Interest, Financing Fees, Less Cap. 
Interest    $328,823  


  Plus Capitalized Interest      
  Total TIF Expenditure       $1,372,514  
            







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 20 


Tax Increment Revenue TID #5 


Model approximating the financial performance of TID #5 with year of parcel removal shown in green and the 
three-year life extension shown in red. This sheet for illustration purposes only. 
 


 Scenario: Existing Conditions - Minimal New Development or Expenses  
Assumptions 


Base Value pre-2018 $19,250,500    Revised Base Value $10,524,100    


Equalized Tax Rate 0.02213 For County, Village, Technical College, and School District 


Property Appreciation Rate 1.00%   
Annual Change in Tax Rate 0.00%   


  Previous Appreciation Increment   Total Cumulative TIF Tax TIF  
Year Valuation Increment     Valuation Increment Rate Revenue 
2010 $18,195,700  ($703,800) $0    $17,491,900  ($1,758,600) 0.020350 $0  
2011 $17,491,900  $2,000,300  $996,200   $20,488,400  $1,237,900  0.020980 $0  
2012 $20,488,400  ($2,761,800) $0   $17,726,600  ($1,523,900) 0.022940 ($36,895) 
2013 $17,726,600  ($856,500) $0   $16,870,100  ($2,380,400) 0.023450 $28,397  
2014 $16,870,100  $845,500  $0   $17,715,600  ($1,534,900) 0.022470 ($35,735) 
2015 $17,715,600  $489,100  $0   $18,204,700  ($1,045,800) 0.022420 ($53,488) 
2016 $18,204,700  ($769,600) $0   $17,435,100  ($1,815,400) 0.022130 ($34,412) 
2017 $17,435,100  $174,351  $0   $17,609,451  ($1,641,049) 0.022130 ($23,144) 
2018 $17,609,451  ($7,889,000) $0    $9,720,451  ($803,649) 0.022130 ($40,175) 
2019 $9,720,451  $97,205  $0   $9,817,656  ($706,444) 0.022130 ($36,316) 
2020 $9,817,656  $98,177  $1,500,000   $11,415,832  $891,732  0.022130 ($17,785) 
2021 $11,415,832  $114,158  $0   $11,529,990  $1,005,890  0.022130 ($15,634) 
2022 $11,529,990  $115,300  $0   $11,645,290  $1,121,190  0.022130 $19,734  
2023 $11,645,290  $116,453  $1,500,000   $13,261,743  $2,737,643  0.022130 $22,260  


2024 $13,261,743  $132,617  $0   $13,394,361  $2,870,261  0.022130 $24,812  
2025 $13,394,361  $133,944  $0   $13,528,304  $3,004,204  0.022130 $60,584  
2026 $13,528,304  $135,283  $1,500,000   $15,163,587  $4,639,487  0.022130 $63,519  
2027 $15,163,587  $151,636  $0   $15,315,223  $4,791,123  0.022130 $66,483  


2028 $15,315,223  $153,152  $0   $15,468,375  $4,944,275  0.022130 $102,672  


2029 $15,468,375  $154,684  $0   $15,623,059  $5,098,959  0.022130 $106,028  
2030 $15,623,059  $156,231  $0   $15,779,290  $5,255,190  0.022130 $109,417  
2031 $15,779,290  $157,793  $0   $15,937,083  $5,412,983  0.022130 $112,840  
2032 $15,937,083  $159,371  $0   $16,096,453  $5,572,353  0.022130 $116,297  
2033 $16,096,453  $160,965  $0   $16,257,418  $5,733,318  0.022130 $119,789  
2034 $16,257,418  $162,574  $0   $16,419,992  $5,895,892  0.022130 $123,316  
2035 $16,419,992  $164,200  $0   $16,584,192  $6,060,092  0.022130 $126,878  
2036 $16,584,192  $165,842  $0   $16,750,034  $6,225,934  0.022130 $130,476  
2037 $16,750,034  $167,500  $0   $16,917,534  $6,393,434  0.022130 $134,110  
2038 $16,917,534  $169,175  $0    $17,086,710  $6,562,610  0.022130 $137,780  
2039 $17,086,710  $170,867  $0    $17,257,577  $6,733,477  0.022130 $141,487  


2040 $17,257,577  $172,576  $0    $17,430,153  $6,906,053  0.022130 $145,231  


Total   ($6,261,747) $5,496,200          $1,598,526  
 
$8,726,400 in parcel value will be removed in 2018 because of this subtraction amendment.  
 







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 21 


Tax Increment Cash Flow TID #5 


Model approximating the financial performance of TID #5 with year of parcel removal shown in green. This 
sheet for illustration purposes only. 
 


    Revenues Expenses   


Balance 


      Total           Annual 
  Beginning Capital TIF Interest   Total  Debt Debt  Surplus 


Year Balance Interest Revenues Income Other Revenues Service Service (Deficit) 
2010 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  
2011 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  
2012 0  0  (36,895) 0  0  (36,895) 0  0  (36,895) (36,895) 
2013 (36,895) 0  28,397  0  0  28,397  0  0  28,397  (8,498) 
2014 (8,498) 0  (35,735) 0  0  (35,735) 0  0  (35,735) (44,233) 
2015 (44,233) 0  (53,488) 0  0  (53,488) 0  0  (53,488) (97,721) 
2016 (97,721) 0  (34,412) 0  0  (34,412) 0  0  (34,412) (132,134) 
2017 (132,134) 0  (23,144) 0  0  (23,144) 77,434  0  (100,578) (232,711) 
2018 (232,711) 0  (40,175) 0  0  (40,175) 77,434  0  (117,609) (350,320) 
2019 (350,320) 0  (36,316) 0  0  (36,316) 77,434  0  (113,751) (464,071) 
2020 (464,071) 0  (17,785) 0  0  (17,785) 77,434  0  (95,219) (559,289) 
2021 (559,289) 0  (15,634) 0  0  (15,634) 77,434  0  (93,068) (652,357) 
2022 (652,357) 0  19,734  0  0  19,734  77,434  0  (57,700) (710,057) 
2023 (710,057) 0  22,260  0  0  22,260  77,434  0  (55,174) (765,231) 


2024 (765,231) 0  24,812  0  0  24,812  77,434  0  (52,622) (817,853) 
2025 (817,853) 0  60,584  0  0  60,584  77,434  0  (16,850) (834,703) 
2026 (834,703) 0  63,519  0  0  63,519  77,434  0  (13,915) (848,618) 
2027 (848,618) 0  66,483  0  0  66,483  77,434  0  (10,951) (859,569) 


2028 (859,569) 0  102,672  0  0  102,672  77,434  0  25,238  (834,332) 


2029 (834,332) 0  106,028  0  0  106,028  77,434  0  28,593  (805,738) 
2030 (805,738) 0  109,417  0  0  109,417  77,434  0  31,983  (773,755) 
2031 (773,755) 0  112,840  0  0  112,840  77,434  0  35,406  (738,350) 
2032 (738,350) 0  116,297  0  0  116,297  77,434  0  38,863  (699,486) 
2033 (699,486) 0  119,789  0  0  119,789  77,434  0  42,355  (657,131) 
2034 (657,131) 0  123,316  0  0  123,316  77,434  0  45,882  (611,249) 
2035 (611,249) 0  126,878  0  0  126,878  0  0  126,878  (484,371) 
2036 (484,371) 0  130,476  0  0  130,476  0  0  130,476  (353,895) 
2037 (353,895) 0  134,110  0  0  134,110  0  0  134,110  (219,785) 
2038 (219,785) 0  137,780  0  0  137,780  0  0  137,780  (82,005) 
2039 (82,005) 0  141,487  0  0  141,487  0  0  141,487  59,482  


2040 59,482  0  145,231  1,784  0  147,015  0  0  147,015  206,497  


Total   0  1,598,526  1,784  0  1,600,311  1,393,814  0      
 


Removing the subject parcels from the south end of TID #5 and extending its life by three years improves the 
financial performance of this TID over its remaining life and may allow termination with a positive balance.  







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 22 


DETAILED LIST OF PROJECT COSTS 
 
This amendment makes no changes to the detailed list of project costs. 


 


DESCRIPTION OF FINANCING METHODS AND TIMEFRAME 
 
This amendment makes no changes to financing methods or timeframe. 


 


PROPOSED CHANGES IN ZONING ORDINANCES, MASTER PLAN, BUILDING CODES, MAP AND CITY ORDINANCES 
 
This amendment proposes no changes in zoning ordinances, master plan, building codes, map or City 
ordinances. 
 


LIST OF NON-PROJECT COSTS 
 
This amendment makes no changes to the list of non-project costs. 
 


PROPOSED PLAN FOR RELOCATING ANY DISPLACED PERSONS OR BUSINESSES 
 
This amendment makes no changes to the plan for relocating any displaced persons or businesses. 
 


HOW THE TID PROMOTES THE ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF THE MUNICIPALITY 
 
This TID promotes the orderly development of the City of Stoughton because it will eliminate blight, improve 
environmental contamination and place unproductive property back on the City tax rolls. This amendment 
recognizes the redevelopment challenges of the properties in the south end of TID #5. Those challenges include 
delays in making the site available for development and the loss of two significant development prospects. 
Subtracting the parcels from TID #5 and forming them into a new TID #8 will re-set the clock for those 
properties and provide more time for development to occur and for that development to fully cover the costs 
incurred. 


MAP OF EXISTING USES AND CONDITIONS OF PROPERTY 
 
This amendment makes no changes to the original maps of existing uses and conditions of property. 
 







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 23 


MAP SHOWING PROPOSED USES AND IMPROVEMENTS IN THE DISTRICT 
 
This amendment proposes no changes to uses or improvements in the district. 
 
  







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 24 


ATTORNEY’S OPINION LETTER 
 
  







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 25 


APPENDIX 
  







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 26 


Letters to overlying taxing jurisdictions  
Notification of initiation of TID plan amendment process 
 
 
 
  







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 27 


Joint Review Board Meetings 


JRB MEETING #1 MEETING NOTICE PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
  







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 28 


 


JRB MEETING #1 MEETING MINUTES 
 
  







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 29 


JRB MEETING #2 MEETING NOTICE PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
 
  







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 30 


JRB MEETING #2 MEETING MINUTES 
  







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 31 


Public Hearing 
 
  







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 32 


RDA Public Hearing Notice 
 
 
  







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 33 


Joint Review Board Public Hearing Notice 
The following public hearing notice was sent to the chief executive officer of each of the overlying taxing 
jurisdictions by first class mail.  







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 34 


Property Owners Public Hearing Notice 
The following public hearing notice letter was sent to all property owners within TID #4. 


  







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 35 


RDA Minutes of  Public Hearing 
  







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 36 


Resolutions 
  







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 37 


RDA Resolution Approving Amendment 


 
 
 
 
  







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 38 


City Council Resolution Approving Amendment 
  







TID #5 Boundary & Life Extension Amendment 


 
Page 39 


JRB Resolution Approving Amendment 
 


 





		Introduction

		Plan Amendment Process

		Map of Boundary Changes

		Parcels Impacted by Boundary Change

		Parcels to be Removed from TID #5:

		Parcels to Remain in TID #5:



		Statement of Kind, Number and Location of Proposed Public Works

		Economic Feasibility Study

		Current Financial Condition

		Financial Projections

		Tax Increment Project Costs TID #5

		Tax Increment Revenue TID #5

		Tax Increment Cash Flow TID #5





		Detailed List of Project Costs

		Description of Financing Methods and Timeframe

		Proposed changes in zoning ordinances, master plan, building codes, map and city ordinances

		List of Non-Project Costs

		Proposed plan for relocating any displaced persons or businesses

		How the TID Promotes the orderly development of the Municipality

		Map of existing uses and conditions of property

		Map showing proposed uses and improvements in the district

		Attorney’s Opinion Letter

		Appendix

		Letters to overlying taxing jurisdictions

		Joint Review Board Meetings

		JRB Meeting #1 Meeting Notice Proof of Publication

		JRB Meeting #1 Meeting minutes

		JRB Meeting #2 Meeting notice proof of publication

		JRB Meeting #2 Meeting minutes



		Public Hearing

		RDA Public Hearing Notice

		Joint Review Board Public Hearing Notice

		Property Owners Public Hearing Notice

		RDA Minutes of Public Hearing



		Resolutions

		RDA Resolution Approving Amendment

		City Council Resolution Approving Amendment

		JRB Resolution Approving Amendment














Proposed TID #8 Parcel List


PIN PARCELNO OWNERS PROPERTYADDRESS Acres Land Value
Improvement 
Value Total Value


Land Value 
per Acre


Improvement 
Value per Acre Blight


6 051108110455 KYLE L ERICKSON 421 S SIXTH ST 0.08 $13,900 $109,800 $123,700 $173,750 $1,372,500
7 051108110553 L B PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC 425 S SIXTH ST 0.12 $24,300 $360,400 $384,700 $195,968 $2,906,452
9 051108110660 DIANE C SPROUL 516 E SOUTH ST 0.20 $34,800 $115,800 $150,600 $174,000 $579,000
10 051108110777 RUBY M CREWS 526 E SOUTH ST 0.30 $43,400 $126,300 $169,700 $144,667 $421,000
11 051108110884 LARRY R FRANKLIN & AMY L FRANKLIN 418 S SEVENTH ST 0.10 $17,400 $105,000 $122,400 $174,000 $1,050,000
8 051108111347 STEVEN L DICKSON & JULIE F DICKSON 415 S SEVENTH ST 0.13 $22,700 $84,800 $107,500 $174,615 $652,308
15 051108111445 JASON S BROWN & GAYLE WALHELM-BROWN 419 S SEVENTH ST 0.09 $15,700 $112,800 $128,500 $174,444 $1,253,333
25 051108111543 NICOLE E EHR 425 S SEVENTH ST 0.09 $13,900 $106,700 $120,600 $173,750 $1,333,750
16 051108111650 TERESA L SEAMONSON 616 E SOUTH ST 0.09 $15,700 $104,000 $119,700 $174,444 $1,155,556
17 051108111767 Current Owner 416 S ACADEMY ST 0.02 $600 $0 $600 $40,000 $0
26 051108111865 EMILY BAHR 624 E SOUTH ST 0.27 $29,600 $108,600 $138,200 $174,118 $638,824
35 051108129650 STEVE DICKSON & JULIANA DICKSON 417 S FOURTH ST 0.10 $17,400 $106,900 $124,300 $174,000 $1,069,000
42 051108129758 STEVE DICKSON & JULIANA DICKSON 425 S FOURTH ST 0.10 $19,600 $80,600 $100,200 $196,000 $806,000 Y
43 051108129865 RICHARD L STIRR & GAIL M STIRR 308 E SOUTH ST 0.20 $34,800 $113,800 $148,600 $174,000 $569,000
39 051108129972 TYSON G POOCH 316 E SOUTH ST 0.20 $34,800 $104,300 $139,100 $174,000 $521,500
44 051108130086 Current Owner 424 S FIFTH ST 0.07 $13,600 $21,000 $34,600 $194,286 $300,000 Y
40 051108130184 RANEY E REEVES III 418 S FIFTH ST 0.13 $22,700 $107,400 $130,100 $174,615 $826,154
73 051108139354 JEFFREY JUMP & CONNIE JUMP 415 S FIFTH ST 0.12 $20,900 $138,300 $159,200 $174,167 $1,152,500
86 051108139416 CARRIE M BERGMAN 421 S FIFTH ST 0.19 $33,100 $89,100 $122,200 $174,211 $468,947
87 051108139461 JUDITH A HUBERD 425 S FIFTH ST 0.10 $19,000 $79,800 $98,800 $195,876 $822,680 Y
88 051108139602 Current Owner 416 E SOUTH ST 0.09 $14,800 $50,100 $64,900 $174,118 $589,412
89 051108139622 Current Owner 424 S SIXTH ST 0.12 $20,000 $94,500 $114,500 $173,913 $821,739
79 051108139685 CATHY L DICKINSON 418 S SIXTH ST 0.20 $34,800 $113,500 $148,300 $174,000 $567,500
80 051108143081 ASSOCIATED BANK NA 425 E SOUTH ST 0.26 $43,900 $130,400 $174,300 $60,972 $181,111
81 051108143116 ASSOCIATED BANK NA 425 E SOUTH ST 0.03 $400 $0 $400 $13,333 $0
82 051108143198 STOUGHTON REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 433 E SOUTH ST 0.60 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 Y
83 051108143287 STOUGHTON REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 433 E SOUTH ST 1.99 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 Y
90 051108143894 CAPITAL INVESTMENTS 415 E SOUTH ST LLC 415 E SOUTH ST 0.12 $19,200 $89,900 $109,100 $174,545 $817,273
84 051108144008 VS OF MADISON LLP 409 E SOUTH ST 0.16 $33,100 $92,200 $125,300 $174,211 $485,263
85 051108144115 MASON PARKS 401 E SOUTH ST 0.20 $34,800 $97,500 $132,300 $174,000 $487,500
94 051108144222 WILLIAM S DUTER 325 E SOUTH ST 0.20 $34,800 $50,600 $85,400 $174,000 $253,000
91 051108144339 JOHN ROBERT SCOTT & ANGELA MARIE UECKER 317 E SOUTH ST 0.20 $34,800 $137,100 $171,900 $174,000 $685,500
92 051108144446 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 501 S FOURTH ST 0.40 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
93 051108144624 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 515 S FOURTH ST 1.80 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
96 051108161016 STOUGHTON TRAILERS INC 524 EIGHTH ST 2.02 $82,200 $469,800 $552,000 $40,614 $232,121 Y
97 051108161721 W RICHARD GORDON III 621 E SOUTH ST 0.10 $17,400 $93,600 $111,000 $174,000 $936,000
95 051108161883 Current Owner 616 EIGHTH ST 0.39 $42,400 $103,700 $146,100 $151,429 $370,357
98 051108162097 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 624 EIGHTH ST 0.01 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
99 051108162319 JUAN OLVEDA & LISA OLVEDA 508 DUNKIRK AVE 0.10 $15,700 $88,200 $103,900 $174,444 $980,000
100 051108162435 TIMOTHY G FRANK 516 DUNKIRK AVE 0.29 $33,100 $126,200 $159,300 $174,211 $664,211
101 051108162533 JIMMY B YOST & ROSE A YOST 532 DUNKIRK AVE 0.20 $34,800 $100,800 $135,600 $174,000 $504,000


Prepared by GWB Professional Services 2/14/2018 Page 1







Proposed TID #8 Parcel List


PIN PARCELNO OWNERS PROPERTYADDRESS Acres Land Value
Improvement 
Value Total Value


Land Value 
per Acre


Improvement 
Value per Acre Blight


102 051108162640 RICHARD H BJORDAHL & NANCEE L BJORDAHL 540 DUNKIRK AVE 0.20 $34,800 $102,500 $137,300 $174,000 $512,500
103 051108162757 JOHN R STOKSTAD & SHEILA B STOKSTAD 600 DUNKIRK AVE 0.52 $52,000 $145,200 $197,200 $108,333 $302,500
109 051108162864 GORDON A JOHNSON & SHERRY L JOHNSON 616 DUNKIRK AVE 0.20 $0 $0 $0 Values w/ PIN 135


104 051108163292 SIGMUND A OLSON & CAROLYN M OLSON 609 EIGHTH ST 0.20 $34,800 $124,200 $159,000 $174,000 $621,000
110 051108163407 JOSEPH G BAWULSKI 601 EIGHTH ST 0.20 $34,800 $79,100 $113,900 $174,000 $395,500
105 051108163514 SHEIL PROPERTIES LLC 525 EIGHTH ST 0.31 $58,000 $217,400 $275,400 $195,286 $731,987
111 051108163621 LARRY B HAWKINS & BRENT A HAWKINS 517 EIGHTH ST 0.18 $29,600 $95,700 $125,300 $174,118 $562,941
112 051108163747 TERRY RIGDON & SHEILA M RIGDON 500 DUNKIRK AVE 0.15 $13,100 $0 $13,100 $87,333 $0
106 051108163845 TERRY J RIGDON & SHEILA M RIGDON 500 DUNKIRK AVE 0.15 $24,400 $150,800 $175,200 $174,286 $1,077,143
107 051108165012 TIMOTHY D THOMAS & CAROL L THOMAS 509 S SEVENTH ST 0.24 $32,600 $122,300 $154,900 $148,182 $555,909
113 051108165138 STOUGHTON TRAILERS INC 524 EIGHTH ST 1.18 $54,100 $1,200 $55,300 $45,742 $1,015 Y
108 051108165227 CITY OF STOUGHTON REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 501 E SOUTH ST 2.23 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 Y
114 051108165316 GREEN ANGEL LLC 517 S SEVENTH ST 0.12 $19,200 $78,700 $97,900 $174,545 $715,455
115 051108165629 STOUGHTON REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 433 E SOUTH ST 0.66 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 Y
116 051108166646 STOUGHTON REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 433 E SOUTH ST 0.26 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 Y
117 051108167136 STOUGHTON REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 433 E SOUTH ST 1.88 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 Y
118 051108167672 STOUGHTON REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 433 E SOUTH ST 0.89 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 Y
129 051108195703 PEARL G KITTLESON 617 E SOUTH ST 0.17 $26,100 $125,300 $151,400 $174,000 $835,333
130 051108195801 JENNIFER HARRIS 609 E SOUTH ST 0.12 $19,200 $124,100 $143,300 $174,545 $1,128,182
132 051108197952 STOUGHTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS JT SCHOOL DIST NO 3 600 MANDT PKWY 3.08 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 Y
135 051108199709 GORDON A JOHNSON & SHERRY L JOHNSON 616 DUNKIRK AVE 0.20 $34,800 $138,700 $173,500 $174,000 $693,500


Source: 2017 Parcel Data, Dane County Land Information Office; GWB Professional Services Total 25.315 $1,411,600 $5,518,700 $6,930,300 Acres Blighted 15.1


Prepared by GWB Professional Services 2/14/2018 Page 2
































1


Lisa Aide


From: Amy Jo Gillingham
Sent: Tuesday, February 27, 2018 1:32 PM
To: Tammy LaBorde; Donna Olson
Subject: Follow-up


Tammy,  
I spoke with our insurance company again regarding the request to enter the Highway Trailer Building.  Please 
pass this on to the parties that are inquiring.    Our insurance company is in complete support of the letter that I 
previously wrote regarding the building being unsafe and a risk should anyone enter the facility.  Based on the 
information received from the study along with the visible deterioration of the building, it was boarded up and 
fenced with the intent to keep people out.  The insurance company recommended using the photo’s that were 
previously taken in lieu of going into the facility.  This is the same recommendation I previously made.  The 
building has been boarded up and the concern I shared regarding the plywood being removed was also a 
concern of the insurance carrier.   
 
The facility has been boarded up to keep people out and to mitigate risk.  The fencing is an additional step to 
keep people out of the site and away from potential harm.  The City needs to do what it can to mitigate any and 
all risks.  This includes not allowing anyone to enter the building.  The statements made by EMS Director 
Schimelpfenig, Chief Leck and Chief Wegner speak volumes regarding the risks. Their staff have been advised not 
to enter the building.  The insurance company states, do not enter the building.  As the City of Stoughton’s Risk 
Management Director, I have stated, do not enter the building.    I cannot in good conscience make any type of 
recommendation that allows for the removal of the plywood that has been put in place to secure the building 
and or allow someone access into the building that we made extraordinary efforts to secure.   
 
Should there be any further inquiries or questions please do not hesitate to ask.   
 
Thank you!   
 
AmyJo Gillingham 
Director of Human Resources & Risk Management 
City of Stoughton 
608-646-0272 
ajgillingham@ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 





